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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800432-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-73S-2964 www^hbs.Dh.gov

November 18. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amerKJ an existing Retroactive, Sole Source contract with The Mental
Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management
(VC#174116-R001). Derry. NH for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive
Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a renewal option by increasing the price limitation by
$403,069 from $576,904 to $979,973 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2021
to July 31, 2021, effective retroactive to August 1, 2020, upon Governor and Coundl approval.
100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #46
and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on May 6, 2020, item #37.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $273,230 $0 $273,230

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $303,674 $348,704 $652,378

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $54,365 $54,365

Total $576,904 $403,069 $979,973

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department is required to align the contract
effective date and completion date with the start and end date of the new consolidation grant, as

The Department of Health and Human Servicee'Miuion ii to)ein communities and families
in providing opportunides for cUisens to achieve health and independence.
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determined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). This request is
Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source and MOP 150 requires
any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to consolidate multiple Permanent Housing Programs,
under one contract, to continue to provide rental assistance, senrice access and supportive
services to individuals, and families who are experiencing homelessness.

The program facilitates the movement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals
and families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately fifty-two (52)
households experiencing homelessness with a focus on families, those experiencing chronic
homelessness, mental illness, or developmental disabilities in Western Rockingham county and
Coos county will be served from July 1, 2020 to July 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information;

« Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules arxl contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to Include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter ar>d housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew senrices for one (1) month of the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and families who
are vulnerable in unsafe and potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as
required by the contract, the Department wiP be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which
could result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.

Area served: Western Rockingham county and Coos county

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0014L1T001912

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer avaUat>le, General Furvls will not
t>e requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #2 to the

Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing Contract, (formerly known as
the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing I Contract), (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 10 Tsienneto Rd, Derry, NH, 03038.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #46). as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #37) the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual' covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$979,973.

3. Remove all references to "Permanent Housing I" and replace with "CLM Supportive Housing"
throughout the Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4. to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0014L1T001811 (SFY 2020; July 1, 2019-June 30, 2020)

1.2.4.2 NH0014L1T001912 (SFY 2021; July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0014L1T001912 (SFY 2022; July 1, 2021 - July 31. 2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., to read:

The Mental Health Center

for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A02

Amendment #2

Page 1 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
10/26/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed: $979,973

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8, to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

July 1,2019- July 1,2020 -
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance;

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services:

1.2.8.3. Administrative Services:

1.2.8.4. Operations:

1.2.8.5. Total Program Amount:

$221,592

$39,600

$6,638

$0

$589,226

$41,538

$21,614

$0

July 1,2021 -
July 31.2021

$49,102

$3462

$1801

$0

$273,230 . $652,378 $54,365

The Mental Health Center

for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a
CLM Center for Life Management

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
10/26/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #2 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective retroactively to August 1, 2020, upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

10/27/2020

Date

■^DocuSigntd by;

'■ Boeea«£[eeBP*»«... :—n—
Name>"'"'S^''"® santamello
Title: Di rector

10/26/2020

Date

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire,
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management

—DocuSlgnad by:

Uc thfo
.  BaaapaeiiPBMiUB..'

Ma me:VI c^opo
Title. president/CEO

The Mental Health Center
for Southern New Hampshire
SS-2020-8HS-04-PERMA-04-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuStanM by:

11/12/2020

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Mental Health Center Amendment #2

for Southern New Hampshire
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA.04-A02 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions ADPiicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State,.through the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS), has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve cornpliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State" or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

14^
The Mental Health Center for Southern New HampsWre Exhibit A - Amendment «2 Contractor Initials
cMj/a CLM Ccnier for Life Managcineni if»/">c/'5nnrt
SS-2020-BHS^-PERMA-04.A02 Page 1 of 5 Date ________
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Program that is targeted to serve
fifty-two (52) households experiencing homelessness with a focus on families, those experiencing
chronic homelessness, mental illness, or developmental disabilities in Western Rocklngham
county and Coos county, and which includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. The utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not
imposed beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project
participation for the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help
a participant maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented In the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating^violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-p; rt^^uch as a

The Mental Health Center for Southern Now Hampshire Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials.
d/b'aCLM Ccwer for Life Manaycment ^26/2020
SS-2020-BHS^.PeRMA-04-A02 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or sen/ice provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, govemment benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program, participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(i){ii)(F);and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).
,  DS

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.9^(l^|(|.^
The Menjal Heallh Center for Southern New Hampshire ExhiWt A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
d/b/a CLM Ccmer for Life Managcinem 10/7^/7070
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A02 Page 3 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

Exhibit A - Amendment U2

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affinmativelv Furthering Fair Housinc bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Recuirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable. i

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations:

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to" BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed In section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

'  i/r
Ttw Mental Health Center for Southem Now Hampshire Exhibit A - AmerxJmenl #2 Contractor Initials
(M)/aCLM Ccnicr for Life ManagciiKiit 10/26/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A02 Page 4 of 5 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CLM Supportive Housing

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application, #SF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined In 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources: employment and/or vocational rehab'referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.

i/r
The Menial Health Center tor Southern New Hampshire
<l/b/a CLM Center for Life ManugcctKiit

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A02

Exhibit A - Amendment tt2

Page 5 of 5

Contractor Initials

10/26/2020
Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH

CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Coloration registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on April 17, 1967. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this o^ce is concerned.

Business ID: 61791

Certificate Number: 0004891024

1So.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CLM CENTER FOR LIFE
MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 30, 2003. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as
this office is concerned.

Business ID: 442328

Certificate Number: 0004888012

8a.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I Ith day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

.Susan Davis hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management .

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and .
held on riO-2^ 1 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Dale)

VOTED: That ^VicTopo, President/CEO (may
list more than one person) (Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of _ The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM
Center for Life Management to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and .any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 10-261 H 2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Susan Davis

Title: Secretary. Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

10/01/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBR0GA110N IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statoment on
this certificate does not con^r any rights to th« ceitificata holder In lieu of such endorsemont(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

CORTACT
NAME;

Kc.£,n: 855 874-0123
i-MAIL
AOOBPRS-

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

The Mental Health Center for Southern

NH DBA CLM Center for Life Management

10 Tsiennetb Rd

Oerry, NH 03038

INSURER B; Granite State Healthcere & Human Svc WC NONAiC

INSURER C :

INSimeR 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHST^NDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERf^ OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOUSUSR
tNSR WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFf
(MM/Donrmi

POLICY EXP
IMM/OD/YYYY) UMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

I CLAIMS.MAOE □ OCCUR
PHPK2186877 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE

OENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY □ JECT □ LOC
OTHER;

ha cceurrancpt

MED EXP (Any e.T pafaon)

PERSONAL S AOV INAIRY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COVP/OP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT
lEa aedoetnl

$1.000.000
$250.000
$10.000

$1.000.000
$3,000,000
$3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LUBIUTY PHPK2186883 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 t1.000,000

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Pw paraon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acodant)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pel aecldanll

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB740169 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 EACH 0CCURR6NCe s5.000.000
AGGREGATE

DED i X RETENTIONSlOOOO
s5.000.000

TT^ I:
PWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNER/exECUTIVEl—1
OFFICERWEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandalory In NH>
II yaa, dascnba -jndar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Dalow

HCHS20200000366 10/01/2020 02/01/2021 ER
Sl&IUIE-

OTH-
£a_

E.L. EACH ACCOENT sSOO.OOO

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $500.000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s500,000
Professional Llab PHPK2186877 10/01/2020 10/01/2021 $1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddKlena] Ramar1i( Sehadula, may ba attached If mora apaci If radulrod)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of NH
Department of Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
f/S30061764/M30061537

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights r«servod.
The ACORD name and logo arc registered marks of ACORD

NZRCA
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MISSION STATEMENT

To promote the health and welUbeing of individuals, families and organizations. We accomplish this

through professional, caring and comprehensive behavioral health care services and by partnering with

other organizations that share our philosophy.

VISION STATEMENT

Together, we can evolve from being primarily a treatment focused behavioral health organization to

one that values whole health and wellness.

OUR PEOPLE

Fostering initiative and creativity through freedom of expression, action and risk taking.

Promoting teamwork, both formally and informally, clear communication and cooperation throughout

the organizations.

Attracting and retaining the highest quality staff by providing innovative recruitment, training and

compensation strategies.

OUR PRINCIPLES

We believe...

•  The community is only as strong as its most vulnerable citizen.

•  The ideal system of care is recovery focused and integrated with community.

•  In the value of taking our expertise to where our consumers live, learn, work and socialize.

•  Services should be provided in a respectful and confidential manner.

• We exemplify the above through honest, caring and trusting collaborative relationships.
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159 River Road

Wisehart, Wimette ̂  Associates plc
Certified Public Accountants F802.876.5020

wwa-cpa.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hatnpshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates (a nonprofit
organization), which are comprised of the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30,
2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibiliiyfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor'sR^onsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and ifair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliates as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Stales of America.

-1 -
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Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary information on pages 16-22 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 17,
2019, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management and Afiiliates internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d^/a CLM Center for Life
Management and AfTiliates internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The
Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and
AfTiliates internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 2 of the financial statements, in 2019, the organization adopted ASU 2016-14, Not-
for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Essex Junction, Vermont
Registration number VT092.0000684
September 17, 2019

-2-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9E11B1E1-28D6-4C22-8DFE-616137B4F5EC

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Security deposit

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Interest rate swap agreement

Total assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion oflong term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities

Accrued vacation

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities

PMPM reserve

Long term debt, less current portion

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019 2018

$  1,662,875 S  1,640,075

943,181 864,230

284,929 144,815

93,768 80,753

11,087 11,087

2,995,840 2,740,960

3,7)5,469 3,656,665

58,030 48,533

$ 6.769.339 $ 6.446.158

$  93,538 $  88,538

76,558 53,554

402,801 375,055

372,138 327,657

18,961 13,319

11,980 7,580

975,976 865,703

225,000 112,737

2,215,250 2,308,819

2,440,250 2,421,556

3,416,226 3,287,259

3,353,1 13 3,158,899

S 6.769.339 S 6.446.158

See notes to financial statements

-3-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Public suDDOrt and revenues:

Public support:

Federal $  893,941 $  1,005,755

State of New Hampshire - BBH 258,681 316,921

State and local funding 43,601 43,602

Other public support 224,837 131,172

Total public support 1,421,060 1,497,450

Revenues:

Program service fees, net 13,076,818 12,364,822

Other service income 647,329 467,403

Rental income 5,188 4,985

Other 158,841 39,231

Gain on sale of assets 10,000 -

Total revenues 13,898,176 12,876,441

Total public support and revenues 15,319,236 14,373,891

Ooeratine exoenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children 5,157,438 . 4,859,070

Elders 501,342 282,131

Vocational 266,091 234,156

Multi-Service 2,971,434 , 2,609,377

Acute Care 932,421 775,806

Independent Living 2,334,134 2,226,618

Assertive Community Treatment 734,195 835,083

Non-Specialized Outpatient 1,063,655 980,645

Non-BBH funded program services 213,421 132,495

Total program expenses 14,174,131 12,935,381

Administrative expenses 960,388 .  1,049,580

Total expenses 15,134,519 13,984,961

Change in net assets from operations 184,717 388,930

Non-ooeratine exoenses:

Fair value gain (loss) on interest rate swap 9,497 85,586

Change in net assets 194,214 474,516

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year 3,158,899 2,684,383

Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year $ 3,353,113 $ 3,158,899

See notes to financial statements

-4-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidalcd Slatcmenis of Funcllonal Expenses
Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Program Program

Services Administrative Total Services Adminislnilive Total

Personnel costs:

Salaries and wages S 8,963,460 S  604,197 S 9,567,657 S 8,271,397 S  679,212 S 8,950,609
Employee benefits 1,947,562 131,727 2,079,289 1,770,356 136,304 1,906,660
Payroll taxes 623.425 41,859 665,284 589,194 48,580 637,774

Accounting/audit fees 56,277 5,753 62,030 50,51 1 4,910 55,421

Advertising 32,756 3,376 36,132 18,548 2,626 21,174
Conferences, conventions and meetings 18,606 9,597 28,203 27,262 1 1,456 38,718
Depreciation 188,646 15,339 203,985 186,697 18,240 204,937

Equipment maintenatKe 34,553 2,524 37,077 14,183 1,385 15,568
Equipment rental 37,204 2,280 39,484 38,062 2,996 41,058
Insurance 73,278 5,836 79,1 14 64,120 6,898 71,018
Interest expense 101,605 8,264 109,869 96,382 9,417 105,799
Legal fees 25,302 1,890 27,192 43,606 4,071 47,677

Membership dues 45,470 6,663 52,133 48,330 8,218 56,548

Occupancy expenses' 1,007,337 10,369 1,017,706 896,640 10,055 906,695
Office expenses 219,960 20,386 240,346 193,164 20,508 213.672

Other expenses 76,453 17,615 94,068 55,224 17,866 73,090
Other professional fees 378,017 57,890 435,907 273,798 55,732 329,530
Program supplies 156,066 12,646 168,712 84,240 8,943 93,183.
Travel 188,154 2,177 190,331 213,667 2,163 215,830

14,174,131 960,388 15,134,519 12,935,381 1,049,580 13,984,961
Administrative allocation 960,388 (960,388) . 1.049,580 (1,049,580) .

Total expenses 15,081,580 S S 15,134,519 S 13,984,961 S S 13,984,961

See notes to financial statements

-5-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in net assets $  194,214 S 474,516

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net

assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 203,985 204,937

Amortization of loan origination fees included

in interest expense 18,930 18,929

Gain on sale of assets (10,000) -

Fair value (gain) loss on interest rate swap (9,497) (85,586)

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable, net (78,951) 10,155

Other receivables (140,114) (28,652)

Prepaid expenses (13.015) 12,496

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 100,873 18,172

Deferred revenue 4,400 -

PMPM reserve 1 12,263 112,737

Net cash provided by operating activities 383,088 737,704

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of assets 10,000 -

Purchases of property and equipment (262.788) (52,938)

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (252,788) (52,938)

Cash fiows from financing activities:

Net principal payments on long tenn debt (107,500) (105,000)

Net cash used in financing activities • (107,500) (105,000)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22,800 579,766

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,640,075 1,060,309

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  i,662,875 $ 1,640,075

SuDolemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid during the year for interest $  109.869 $ 105.799

See notes to financial statements

-6-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note I. Nature of organization

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the "Agency") is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New Hampshire
law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health programs.

During 2006, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the "Foundation") was
established to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the Agency. It
is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management through common board members and management. In addition, the
Agency is the sole member.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and the Center for Life Management Foundation are collectively referred to the
"Organization".

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for

Southern New Hampshire d^/a CLM Center for Life Management and the Center for Life
Management Foundation. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis,
revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred, without regard
to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Accountingfor Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

Basis of presentation

The Organization's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in perfomiing the primary objectives of
the Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities.

-7-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

'  D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued")

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization only had net assets without donor restrictions of
S3,353,1 13 and $3,158,899, respectively.

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial statements and the notes
are representations of the Organization's management. The Organization is responsible for
the integrity and objectivity of the financial statements.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions
afTecl the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the
estimates that were used.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The

Organization had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $242,758 and $224,548 as of June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Refer to Note 3 for additional discussion of accounts
receivable.

Property
Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Automobiles 3-15 years
Equipment 5-7 years

All equipment valued at $500 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and bettennents are capitalized. Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $203,985 and $204,937 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and

2018, respectively.

Finance costs

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of position net of accumulated amortization. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the unamortized financing costs
are reported as a reduction in long term debt - see Note 7. The costs are amortized over the
tenn of the respective financing arrangement.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued')

Vacation pav and fringe benefits
Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs.

Fair value measurements and financial instruments

The Company adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codification established a
common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly.transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques
that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
These inputs are prioritized as follows:

•  Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•  Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

•  Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which require
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Organization's financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-tenn nature of such instruments.
The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to their bearing interest at
rates that approximate current market rates for notes with similar maturities and credit
quality.

The Organization's interest rate swap agreements are classified as level 2 in the hierarchy, as
all significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly observable, such as the
underlying interest rate assumptions.

Third-partv contractual arrangements
A significant portion of revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Advertisine expenses

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

-9-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued")

Expense allocation

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with

donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed
restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the
contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.
Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets
must be used are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions
are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.

Interest rate swap
The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its State
Authority Bond to a fixed rate, as described in Note 8. The change in the fair value of the
swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted
with the interest expense on the bonds. Cash flows from interest rale swap contracts are
classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

Income taxes

The Agency is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Agency has also been classified as an entity that is not a
private foundation within the meaning of 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Foundation is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section
501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is an organization that is organized and operated
exclusively for the benefit of the Agency.

These financial statements follow PASS ASC, Accoiiniing/or Uncertain Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Accounting/or Uncertain Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these financial
statements as the Organization believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that could have
an effect on its financial statements.

Federal Fonn 990 (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years
2016, 2017 and 2018 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
filing.

- 10-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued")

Reclassifi cations

Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified in order to be
comparable with the current year presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) -
Presenlalion of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profti Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about
liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information
provided about expenses and investment return. The Organization has adjusted the
presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to
all periods presented.

Subsequent events

The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through September 17, 2019, the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3. Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,:

2019 2018

Accounts receivable

Clients

Insurance cornpanies
Medicaid

Medicare

Receivable

Receivable Allowance Net

;  319,858 $ (192,955) $ 126,903
190,094 (4,389) 185,705
620,780 (43,187) 577,593
55.207 (2.221) 52.980

Receivable

Receivable Allowance Net

B  332,312 $ (179,244) $ 153,068
144,808 (6,476) 138,332
540,750 (35,213) 505,537
70.908 (3.615) 67.293

Other receivables

Towns

NH Division of Mental Health

Unemployment tax refund
Contractual services

Note 4. Concentrations of credit risk

2019

28,000

125,889

12,881

118.159

2018

18,600

87,680

38.535

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit risk
consist of the following:

2019 2018

Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in

southern New Hampshire

Other receivables due from entities located

in New Hampshire S  284.929 .14_4,815

- 11 -
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 4. Concentrations of credit risk (continuedl

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had approximately
$ 1,287,000 and $ 1,212,400 in uninsured cash balances.

Note 5. Preoaids

Prepaids consists of the following at June 30:
2019 2018

Prepaid insurance $ 37,268 $ 32,777
Prepaid rents 56.500 47.976

S  93.768 £ 80.753

Note 6. Property and equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2019. 2018

Land ■ $ 565,000 S 565,000

Buildings and improvements 4,036,993 3,977,453
Automobiles 18,800 20,000
Equipment 1.630.644 1.446.194

6,251,437 6,008,647
Less: accumulated depreciation f2.535.9681 f2.351.9821
Property and equipment, net S 3.715.469 S 3.656.665

Note 7. Long tenn debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30,:

2019 2018

Series 2015 New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond -

Payable through 2036, original principal of
$3,042,730, remarketed and sold to People's
United Bank at a variable rate, with an effective
rate of 3.5866% and 2.8169% at June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Secured by land,
building, equipment, and certain revenues,
and is subject to certain financial covenants.
The note matures August 2025. The
Organization has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement to effectively fix the interest
rate on the note. See Note 9. 2,647,730 2,755,230

Less: unamortized finance costs f338.9421 f357.8731

Long tenn debt, less unamortized finance costs 2,308,788 2,397,357
Less: current portion of long tenn debt f93.5381 f88.5381
Long term debt, less current portion

- 12-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 7. Long term debt ("continued^

In 2017, the Organization retroactively adopted the requirements of FASB ASC 835-30 to
present debt issuance costs as a reduction of the carrying amount of debt rather than as an
asset.

Amortization of $18,930 and $18,929 is reported as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Future maturities to long term debt are as follows:

Long Term Debt Unamortized

Princinal Finance Costs Net

ending June 30.

2020 S  112,500 a;  (18,962) $  93,538
2021 - 117,500 (18,962) 98,538
2022 122,500 (18,962) 103,538

2023 127,500 (18,962) 108,538

2024 132,500 (18,962) 1 13,538
Thereafter 2.035.230 f244.132^ 1.791.098

Total $_2.642.230 a $__2.mZ85

Note 8. Line of credit

As of June 30, 2019, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $850,000, which is available through March 29, 2021. Interest
accrued on the outstanding principal balance is payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal
Prime plus .50% (effective rate of 6.00% at June 30, 2019). The outstanding balance on the
line at June 30, 2019 was $0. The line of credit is secured by all business assets and real
estate.

As of June 30, 2018, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $850,000, which was available through March 29, 2019.
Interest accrued on the outstanding principal balance was payable monthly at the Wall Street
Journal Prime plus 1.50% (effective rate of 6.00% at June 30, 2018). The outstanding
balance on the line at June 30, 2018 was $0. The line of credit was secured by all business
assets and real estate.

Note 9. Interest rate swap

During 2016, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement with People's
United Bank that effectively fixes the interest rate on the outstanding principal of the Banks
term note at 3.045%.

Under the arrangement, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the
Organization receiving floating payments of one month London InterBank Offered rate
("LIBOR") plus .69% and paying a fixed rate of 3.045%.

The agreement matures August 2025 and has a notional amount of $2,647,730 and
$2,755,230 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

- 13-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 9. Interest rate swap (continued)

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the interest rate swap agreement
is recorded at its fair value as an asset or liability, with the changes in fair value being
reported as a component of the change in net assets without donor restrictions. For the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization reported an interest rate swap asset of
$58,030 and asset of $48,533 on the statement of financial position and a fair value gain /
(loss) on the interest rate swap of $9,497 and $85,586 on the statement of activities,
respectively. The fair value gain / (loss) is reported as a non-operating expense of the
Organization and is a non-cash transaction.

Note 10. Employee benefit plan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions totaled $109,592 and $99,861 for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note II. Commitments and contingencies

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management, has entered into an agreement with Parkland Medical Center ("PMC") of
Derry, New Hampshire, which requires that CLM provide psychiatric services and
consultations to inpatients of PMC for the hospital medical and nursing staff. The
consultations are requested by the hospital and responded to by CLM medical staff on an on-
call basis.

In addition to the psychiatric services, CLM provides emergency mental health assessments,
evaluations, and referral services to the emergency department ("ED") of the hospital. CLM
emergency service clinicians are available on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week basis to
see patients entering the ED who are experiencing a mental health crisis or psychiatric
emergency.

The original agreement expired May 31, 2018, however, a new agreement was effective July
1, 2018. The new agreement is effective for an initial one year tenn and will be automatically
renewed for up to two additional one year terms.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Agency received approximately 68% and
72%, respectively, of its total revenue in the fonti of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
State of New Hampshire designated Community Mental Health Center affords the Agency
Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides a base allocation of state general
funds are taken as grant funds which are drawn as related expenses are incurred. Medicaid is
comprised of 50% Federal fnnds and 50% New Hampshire State matching funds.

- 14-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 12. Lease commitments

The Agency leases facilities and multiple copier agreements under various operating leases.
Rent expense recorded under these arrangements was approximately $196,000 and $204,000
for the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

The following details the future minimum lease payments on leases with an initial or
remaining term of greater than one year as of June 30, 2019:

Years ending June 30.

2020 $ 183,924
2021 177,559
2022 181,773

2023 185,987

2024 190.201

Total S 919.444

Note 13. Availability and liouiditv

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at June 30,:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,662,875 $ 1,640,075
Accounts receivable 943,181 864,230
Other receivable 284,929 144,815
Security deposit 11.087 11.087
Total financial assets 2,902,072 2,660,207

Less amounts not available within one year:

Security deposit (11.087) fl 1.087)

Financial assets available to meet general
Expenditures over the next twelve months $2.890.985 $2.649.120

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available
funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-monlh
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing mission-related
activities, as well as the conduct of service undertaken to support those activities, to be
general expenditures.

The Organization's primary source of liquidity is its cash and cash equivalents.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures within one year, the
Organization operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

- 15-
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THIi MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHtRE

D/B/ACLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Position

June 30, 2019

Center for Life CLM

Management Foundation Total

ASSETS

Consolidated

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,451,648 S 211,227 S 1,662,875 S s 1,662,875
Accounts receivable, net 943,181 . 943,181 . 943,181
Other receivables 284,929 . 284,929 . 284,929
Prepaid expenses 93,768 . 93,768 . 93,768
Security deposit 1 1.087 . 1 1.087- . 1 1,087

1 otal current assets 2.784,613 211,227 2,995.840 - 2,995,840

Property and equipment, net 3,715,469 - 3,715,469 . 3,715,469
Other assets:

Interest rate swap agreement 58,030 . 58,030 . 58,030

Total assets S_ 6.558.1 12 ? 21 1.227 S 6.769.339 S $ 6.769.339

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities;

Current portion of long-term debt s 93,538 S s 93,538 s $ 93,538

Accounts payable 76,558 76,558 76.558

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 402,801 402,801 402,801
Accrued vacation 372.138 372,138 372,138

Accrued expenses 18,961 18,961 18,961

Deferred revenue 1 1,980 1 1,980 1 1.980

Total current liabilities 975,976 975,976 975,976
Long term liabilities:

PMPM rescr\'c 225,000 225,000 225,000

Long-term-debt less current portion 2,215.250 2,215.250 2,215,250

Total long term liabilities 2,440.250 2.440,250 2,440.250

Total liabilities 3,416,226 3,416,226 - 3,416,226
Net assets without donor restrictions 3.141,886 211,227 3.353,1 13 . 3,353.1 13

Total liabilities and net assets 6.558.112 5 211.227 5 6.769.339 s •  s_

Sec Independent Auditor's Report • 16-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Siatemeni of Position
June 30, 2018

Center for Life CLM

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Security deposit

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Interest rate swap agreement

Total assets

Foundation Total

864.230

144,815

80,753

1 1,087

2,530,183

3,656,665

210,777

48.533

Eliminations Consolidated

S  1,429.298 S 210,777 S 1.640,075 S

864.230

144.815

80,753

11,087

2,740,960

3,656,665

48,533

?  S 210.777 S 6.446.1S3 $_

S  1,640,075

864,230

144,815

80,753

11,087

2,740,960

3,656.665

48.533

S 6.446.158

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities

Accrued vacation

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities

PMPM rcscr%'e

Long-term-debt less current portion

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

88,538

53,554

375,055

327,657

13,319

7,580

865,703

112,737

2,308,819

2,421,556

3,287,259

2,948,122 210.777

88,538

53,554

375,055

327.657

13.319

7,580

865,703

1 12,737

2,308,819

2,421,556

3,287,259

3,158,899

S  6.235.381 S 210.777 S 6.446.158 S

88,538

53,554

375,055

327,657

13,319

7.580

865,703

112,737

2,308,819

2,421.556

3,287,259

3,158.899

? 6.44^.1»
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THI; MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D'D'A CLM CENTER EOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Suiteinem of Activities
•For the Year Ended June 30. 2019

Center for Life

Manaeenicnl

CLM

Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

Public support:

Fedcnl

State ofNew Hampshifc - BBH

State and local funding

Other public support

Total public support

Revenues;

Program service fees, net

Other service income

Rental income

Other

Gain on sale of assets

Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

893.941 S

258.681

43.601

171.448

1.367,671

13.076.818

647J29

5.188

158.84!

10.000

13.898.176

15J65.847

53.389

53.389

893.941 $

258.681

43.601

224.837

1.421.060

13.076.818

647.329

5.188

158.841

^  10,000
^  13.898.176

53J89 I3JI9J36

S  893.941

258.681

43.601

224.837

1.421.060

13.076.818

647.329

5.188

158.841

10.000

13.898.176

I5JI9.236

BBH funded programs:

Children

Elders

Vocational

Multi-Service

Acute Care

Independent Living

Assertive Community Treatment

Non-Specialized Outpatient

N'on-BBH funded program services

Total program expenses

Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operations

Non-oneratitm expenses:

Fair value gain on interest rate swap

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end ofyear

5.157.438

501.342

266.091

2,971.434

932.421

2J34.I34

734.195

1.063.655

160.482

14.121.192

960J 88

15.081.580

184.267

9.497

193.764

2.948.122

5.157.438

501.342

266.091

2.971.434

932.421

2.334.134

734.195

1.063.655

213.42!

14.174,131

^  960.388
52.939 15,134.519

184.717

52.939

52.939

450

450

210.777

9.497

194.214

3.158.899

S  3.141.886 S 2IU27 $ 3J53.1I3 $_

5,157,438

501,342

266.091

2,971.434

932.421

2J34,134

734.195

1.063.655

213.421

14.174.131

960.388

15.134.519

184,717

9.497

194.214

3,158.899

$ 3J53.II3
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Till-MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/D/ACLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AITILIATES

Consolidaiing Siatcinent of Acliviiies
For the Year Ended June 30. 2018

Center for Life CLM

Manaennent Foundaiion IquJ Consolidated

Public support:

FedenI

Sate ofScw Hampshiie • BBH

Stale and local funding

Other public support

Total public support

Revenues:

Program service fees, net

Other service iiKome

Rental income

OlhCT

Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

Otxrttnwt! exttenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children

Elders

Vocational

Multi-Service

Acute Care

Independent Living

Assertive Commitnity Treatment

Non-Specialized Outpatieru

Non-BBH funded program services

Total program expenses

Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operations

Fair value gain on inicrest rale swap

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end ofyear

$  1.005.755 S

316.921

43.602

66.499

. 1.432.777

I2J64,822

467.403

4.985

39.231

12.876.441

14J09J18

4,859.070

282.131

234.156

2.609,377

775.806

2.226.618

835.083

980.545

96.069

12,898.955

1.049.580

13.948.535

360,683

85.586

64.673

64.673

36.426

36.426

28.247

S  1.005.755 $

316.921

43.602

131.172

36.426 13.984.961

t.497.450

12.364.822

467.403

4.985

:  39.231
^  12.876.44I

64.673 14.373.89!

4.859.070

282.131

234.156

2.609.377

775.806

2.226.618

835.083

980.645

132.495

12,935J81

1.019.580

388.930

85.586

446.269 28.247 4 74.516

2.501.853 182.530 2.684.383 _
2.948.122 $ 210.777 $ 3.158.899 ^

S  1.005.755

316.921

43.602

131.172

1.497.450

12.364.822-

467.403

4.985

39J3I

12.876.441

14J73.891

4.859.070

282.131

234,156

2,609J77

775,806

2^26,618

835.083

980,645

132,495

12.935J81

1.049.580

13.984.961

388.930

85.586

474,516

2.684.383

$ 3.158.899

See independent Auditor's Report -19-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Analysis of Accounts Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Clients

Insurance companies

Mcdicaid

Medicare

Allowance

Total

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning of

Year Cross Fees

S  332,312 S 1,335,372 S

144,808 2,237.147

540,750 12,473,046

70,908 617,187

(224.548) ■

Contractual

Allowances and

Other Discounts Change in

Given Cash Receims Allowance

(356.399) S (991,427) S

(1.075,770) (1,116,091)

(2.059,091) (10.333,925)

(251,328) (381,560)

Accounts

Receivable

End of

Year

S  319,858

190,094

620.780

55,207

^  (18,210) (242,758)
S  864.230 S 16,662,752 S (3,742,588) S (12.823.003) S (18,210) $ 943,181

See Independent Auditor's Report •20-
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THE MENTAl. HEALTH CENTER FOR SOLfTIIERN SEW HAMPSHIRE

DjB'A CLM center for life MANAGEMENT

Schedule of Propam Rnenuei «nd E.«paa<s
For the Year Ended Jutw 30, 2019

AasCTtive Nocv Total

Mulli- Acute Independent Comtnuniiy Specialized Other Piogiam Admin- Total

ChildTCTt Elder* Vocaiional SeT\-»ce £ire Living Treatmeni OitPBtienl Noo-nBH Services Isitallve Attencv

Piihlir fimncwl end fwmiici-

Public (lippon:

Fcdeal i  2J00 $ S S  S 35338 8  790302 8  62.901 8  2300 8 8  893.941 8 8  893.941

SmeoFSewilaRipehire- DDH 6J2S 3.945 86309 162.099 258381 258381

Suie end local Ending 14.671 14371 14.659 43.601 43.601

Other piijlic (uppon 24.900 22.950 122.078 520 170.448 1.000 171,448

Total public support 48.399 3.945 121,847 813.452 225.000 138.849 15.179 1.366.671 l.OCO 1367,671

Rn'enues;

Program lertice Teea, net 5.692.793 542.785 222350 3.745.4H 524.729 1367.991 6563 75 416.798 7.686 13.076.818 13.076318

Other ia>-ice income 52.898 49J45 880 275.064 1308 219.489 48.445 647329 647329

Rental income 889 1.632 889 889 889 5.188 5.188

Other 43.669 2366 2.103 23.431 6.962 19.206 7.948 13.406 964 120355 38386 158.841

Gain on tale of asset* 3.484 202 168 ' 1.870 556 1.596 599 703 70 9.248 752 10.000

T'oiaJ m enues 5.793.733 594.798 224321 3.773324 808300 1.290.990 664.922 631385 57,165 13.858.838 39.338 13.898.176

Total public support aid reverues 5342.132 594.798 224321 3.777.169 930.047 2.l(W.442 889.922 790,134 72344 13325309 40338 15365347

Total expenses 5308339 535.422 284.175 3,173379 995.792 2.492.759 784.083 1.135,941 171390 15.081380 15.031380

Change in net assets from operations 333.493 59J76 (59.654) 603.790 (65.745) (388.317) 105.839 (345.807) (99.046) 143.929 40338 184367

Non^**Talino rxnrmes-

- Fair lalue gain on interest rate swap 3J08 192 160 1,776 528 1316 569 668 66 8.783 714 9.497

Change in net tacts S  336.801 S 59368 8  159,494) S  605366 S (65317) 8  (386.801) 8  106.408 8  (345.139) 8  (98.980) 8  152.712 8  41.052 8  193.764

See Indepcndenl Auditor's Report -21 .
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TllE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOLTTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D'B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

Schedule of Proiyam Expenses
For ihe Year Ended June 30.2019

Assertive nort- Total

Mulri- Acue Independem Community Specialiaed Other Pioipani Admin Total

Children Elders Vocational Service Care Living Tteatmem OuiDoiicm Noo-nnn Services istrative Awncv

Personnel coets:

Salaries and u-a(ies $ J.449.000 $ 351.535 $  167.769 S 2.04IJ2I S 693J35 i  I.OOS.680 J  446041 8  698085 J  105.994 8 8.963.460 8  604.197 8 9067057

Employee beneEts 702^5 93.009 53.845 471,770 87.810 284.070 126.462 107.947 19.984 1.947062 131.727 2.079089

Payroll (axe* 240^78 24,868 11.643 140.823 49.856 69,022 31,695 48050 6.990 523.425 41.859 665084

Accounting'audii fees 2I.0S9 1.223 I.OIS IIJi9 3J66 9,660 3.629 4057 427 55.988 5.753 61,741

A(h'enisin|{ 12.077 813 671 6.443 2.145 5051 2.0SI 2,766 529 32.756 3076 36.132

Confeiencts, comeniions and me«iint;s 4.413 III 744 4.026 533 624 751 7,058 346 18.606 9097 28003

Depreciadon 71,069 4.121 3,427 38.145 IIJ41 32.556 12.219 14,340 1.428 188.646 15039 203.985

Equipment maintenance 11,603 674 563 6.224 1.853 5.308 1,997 2.342 3,989 34053 2024 37.077

Eqidpmeni rental I5J33 612 509 6.407 3.623 4.839 1016 3.852 213 370<M 2O80 39.484

Insurance 27.(Ml 1.567 IJ03 16.014 4Ji6 12.388 4.649 5.456 544 7307$ 5.836 79.114

Interest expense 38.281 2.218 1.845 20>I5 6.107 17036 6082 7.719 772 I01005 8064 109069

LepI fees 8,757 5CS 422 4.701 U9g 4.012 3061 1.767 176 25002 1.890 27.192

Membership dues 13.998 918 734 9.783 2.636 6.470 2.555 4.568 3.708 45.470 6.663 52,133

Occupancy expenses ISOJIO 2,787 2.316 45.73! 7,665 701.658 9.010 56.897 963 1.007037 10.369 1.017,706

onWe exporses 81,067 3.749 4.322 35.797 13.077 34.483 23O70 21.619 2076 219.960 20.386 240046

Other expenses 8J90 385 322 4J54 4.081 3.963 1006 1086 90S 25095 17.615 43.010

Other professicna] fees 131.798 7Jli 6.087 72.497 25.597 59,663 21040 49.034 2048 376,425 •57.890 434015

Proipam stoics 55J7J 2.056 2.745 26.900 11.521 14.831 13.014 20000 8.624 156,066 12.646 168.712

Travel 84.794 2.877 5.806 8.434 1.961 59,140 20,917 4,162 63 188.154 2.177 190031

5.157.438 50iJ42 266,091 2.971.434 932.421 2,334.134 734.195 I.063O55 160.482 14,121,192 960088 I5.08I080

Administrative allocation 351.201 34.080 18.084 201.945 63J7I 158025 49,888 72086 10.908 960088 1960.388)

Total program expenses $ 5.508.639 I 535.422 i  284.175 S 3.173J79 $ 995.792 $ 2.492,759 S  784083 S  1.135.941 $  I7IJ90 8 15.081080 8 815.081080

Sec Independent Audiior's Report -22-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS FY2021

David Hebert

Chairperson

Maria Gudinas

Vice Chair

Susan Davis

Secretary

Ron Lague

Treasurer

Elizabeth Roth

Judi Ryan

Jeffrey Rind, MD

Gail Corcoran

Vic Topo
PrMicj^f^&.CEG

Vemon Thomas

Christopher Peterson

Joseph Crawford



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9E11B1E1-28D6-4C22-8DFE-616137B4F5EC

VICTOR TOPO

President/Chief Executive Officer

Successful 32-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus on mission and
achieving results. Talent for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-
traditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

Operations
Reorganization and reinvention

Team building and leadership

Strategic planning
Collaboration

•  Strategic partnerships
•  Strong relationship with funders
•  Community building

•  Innovation

1999 - Present

Professional Experience
Center for Life Management - Derry, NH
President/Chief Executive Officer

Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association including two residential facilities.

Key results:

• Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from three to six.
• Revenues increased from 6.5 million to 13 million.

•  Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public
relations strategy while also rebranding CLM in 2004.

•  Guided Board of Directors towards more accountability including higher expectation
from management and individual board members.

•  Initiated and implemented Corporate Compliance Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer

•  Increased year after year number of persons served starting with 3,400 to nearly 6,000.
•  Created and implemented strategy to integrate behavioral health care with physician

healthcare. Integrated behavioral health services into two Primary Care/Pediatric
Practices and two Specialty Practices in Southern New Hampshire.

•  Consolidated outpatient offices toward design and construction of new state of the art
26,000 square foot facility. Received national awards for design and use of new
facility.

•  Provided leadership and vision to oversee the development and implementation of an
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAISCE. Software now includes e-
prescribing and has begun acquiring Meaningful Use dollars with regular upgrades
over course of fifteen years.

•  Adopted Neurostar Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) in 2010 as newest neuro
tech treatment for treatment resistant Major Depressive Disorder. First free standing
community mental health center in the U.S. to offer it.

•

Pathways, Inc. - Mentor, OH 1988 - 1999
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director

Started with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.
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Key results:

VICTOR TOPO
-Page 2-

In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio's first 24 hour 7 days
a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

•  Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to our
community.

•  Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.

•  Created county's only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).
•  Pathways' first long range strategic plan in 1992.
•  Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center - Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager

Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.
Key results;

•  Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.

•  Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.

•  Designed and implemented agency's first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)

Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOAIU)/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS

Heritage United Way - Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission - Co-Chair

Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee - Co-Chair

Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Behavioral Health Network - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program - Graduate, Class of 2001
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DIANA LACHAPELLE, CPA

Strategically focused leader with extensive operations, accounting and financial management
experience. Possesses keen business acumen and decision making skill. Proven track record of working

collaboralivcly and driving change to optimize profitability.

Strategic Planning
Revenue Cycle Management
Financial Reporting & Analysis

Core Qualifications

• SOX Compliance
• Budgeting & Forecasting
• Contract Negotiations

Internal Controls

Audit

Labor Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

VICE PRESIDENT - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d.b.a. Center for Life Management,
Derry, NH March 2020 to present
Provide leadership and direction in the areas of finance, revenue cycle and cash management. Develop,
implement and evaluate strategic plans to improve operating performance.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, N H February 2018 to
February 2020

Leader of this for profit, 50-bed, acute care rehabilitation hospital and outpatient treatment center
reporting directly to the Regional President. Hospital is part of a publicly traded healthcare system
comprised of 133 inpatient rehabilitation hospitals, 245 home health agencies and 82 hospice locations.

kev conUibutions and results:

•  Strategic leadership to achieve discharge growth of 15% year over year for two consecutive years in
an industry where 3% p"owth is the norm.

•  Financial leadership to realize EBITDA growth year over year of 24% and 19% for 2018 and 2019,
respectively.

• Organizational and change management to improve employee engagement results by 16 basis points.
•  Process improvement leadership to improve patient outcomes and satisfaction.

CONTROLLER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, NH January 2012 to
January 2018
Responsible for all financial aspects of the hospital including the development of the annual operating
plan, monthly analysis of results and execution of corrective actions as needed to ensure achievement of
planned results. Chief liaison between corporate finance and the hospital.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 9E11B1E1-28D6-4C22-0DFE-616137B4F5EC

Key contributions and results:

•  Implemented cost reduction initiatives to improve profitability by 7%.
• Restructured outpatient operation to create a viable business unit, improving net income by 34%.
• Developed and executed a labor management plan to improve operational efficiency and reduce full

time equivalents by 7%.
•  Preceptor for newly hired Controllers.

CPA SERVICES

Diana C. Lachapelle, CPA, Bedford, NH 2003-2011
Provided accounting leadership and business solutions to clients including cash management,
forecasting, budgeting, financial statement preparation, tax preparation, and development of
internal controls.

DIRECTOR OF WORLDWIDE FOOTWEAR COST & FINANCIAL PLANNING
Timberland Corporation, Stratham, NH 1996-1999
• Responsible for all financial aspects of this $550 million manufacturing and sourcing

operation including accounting, forecasting, budgeting, reporting, product costing and audit.
•  Partnered with the VP of Operations to achieve key cost reductions, as well as, improved

reliability and quality resulting in actual pcrfonnance exceeding budget by $6.9 million.

FINANCIAL MANAGER, CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP
Nashua Corporation, Nashua, NH 1993-1996

auditor

Ernst & Young, Manchester, NH 1989-1992

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATION

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University ofNew Hampshire, Durham
Certified Public Accountant, State of New Hampshire
Member of the American College of Healthcare Executives and Healthcare Financial
Management Association

SYSTEM EXPERIENCE

Oracle Enterprise Performance Management System, Oracle PeopleSoft, Hyperion, Cemer EMR
and reporting, E-Time, Attendance Enterprise, Microsoft Office Suite, Ariba Contract
Management, Maven, Beacon, Tableau
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To oWaln a poafon whefB I can maximize my mulfflayer of mana^ment sWDs. quallly assufsnce,
uD|8CtiV6 program (Jevelopment, experience as an educator, customer service, and a successful track record in

the heattfi care environment

Professional Healthcare Systems Align, LLC
Experlanco |_ead Nottingham, NH 1/2OIO-Present

Heatthcare SvstemsAliQn.com

•  Provrideconsullat'on to agencies, medical practices and practitioners to establish systems
of integrated heatthcare that includes pra^ patterns, bSTing strategies, quality and
compliance strategy, policy development outcome measurement and supervfelon.

VP of Quality, Compliance Center for Life Management, Derry, NH 1/2009 ■ Present
www.centerfoftlfemanaaement.orQ

•  Senior management position In mental health center serving 6000 consumers
ResponsitxGties include development implementation and monitoring of strategies and
systems to continuously improve the quality of services to consumers. Assure compfiance
to state and todera) regulations.

•  Develcf>ar)d maintain systems to assure fidelity to evidence based practices.
•  Continuous devetopment of Ek^R and associated staff training.
■  Establish and maintain outcome measures and their incorporation into QI/URInitialives.
•  Develop and Implement projects to improve the quality of care.
•  Chair of agency Safety Committee.

Director, Behavioral Health Portsmouth Regional Hospital 1/2006 -12/2009
. Services Portsmouth, NH

■  Responsible for clinical, administrative and fiscal management of service line wtvch
Includes 22 bed inpatient psychiatric unIL Psychiatric Assessment and Referral Service
and Interdepartmental service. Supervision of an Assistant Director and Coordinator,
Responsibie for 85 staff. Oversee the integration of behavioral health into primary care.
Mar^ annual budget of 10.5 mi^lO^ doBars.

■  Chair Directors Operations Meeting. Coordinate monthly meeting of hospital departmentai
directors.

■  CcKhair of Patient Flow Committee. Analysis and development of data systems to
monitor patient throughput Develop and implement strat^Ies to Improve the efficierKy of
care.
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Steve SimmU

Assfetent Directof of Portsmouth Regional Hospital 4/2005 -1/2006
Behavioral Health Services Portsmouth. NH

•  Respofsible for the cTiriical and adrninistratlvefurictioning of the Psychiatric assessment
and Referral Service (PARS). Manage annual budget of 600K. ,

•  Supervi^ of 22 ciinicians who provide psychiatric crisis assessrnents.admisaons,
intake and referral 24 hours a day. -

•  Supervision, oversight and development of the Interdepartmental Service: 3 clinicians who
provide psychiatric assessment, consultation and therapy to patients admitted medically to
the hospital.

Director of Adult Services Community Partners; Dover. NH 11/2001 - 4/2005

•  Responsible for the clinical, administrative and financial operations of (he Adult Outpatient
Therapy. EAP, Admissions, Emergency Services. Geriatric and Acute Service programs
(PHP/lOP) serving Strafford County. Supervised 4 mangers responsible fijr 26 staff.
Manage annual budget of 3 milon doiiars.

Clinical Director of RIverbend Community Mental Health Ctr 9/2000 -11/2001
Community Support Prog. Concord, NH

•  Responsfcle for the clinical, administrative and fiscal operations of programs serving 554
consumers with severe and persistent mental illness. Directly supervise 5 manc^ers
responsi'ble for 60 staff. Developmerrt and oversight of annu^ budget of 4 mllllon dollars.

Treatment Team RIverbend Community Mental Health Ctr 8/1996 - 9/2000
Coordinator Cfoncord. NH

"  Clinical and administrative supervision of a muitidlsciplinary team of 12 direct care staff.
Serving an average of 100 Indl^uais with severe a^ persistent mental illness.

Team Leader Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1993-8/1996

"  Clinical and administrative supervision of 8 direct care staff. Serving an average of 80
individuals with severe and persistent mental iOness.

"  Developed the first interagexy treatment foam to serve individuals with severe and
persistent mental illness and developmental disabilities in NH.

Clinical Case Manager Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1992 -12/1993
■  Provided psychotherapy and case management services to individuals with severe and

persistent mental Illness and substance abuse Issues as part of The Continuous
Treatment Team study through Dartmouth College,

. 0 .
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Residential Resources; Keene, NH 1/1989-1/1992
Assistant Director/

Behavioral Specialist

■  Directed all administrative, fiscai and dinkal activities for 5 group homes and 3 supported
living anangements serving people with developmental disatrlirlies. Provide Irehavloral
consultaSon to indi\Muals with tohavioral^nctionai challenges.

TB8cblno&
EdDcailonel

iKporience

Behavioral Specialist I
Clinical Supervisor

The Center for Humanistic Change
Manchester, NH

8/1986-1/1989

>  Provide trehavlorai consultation to individuals feeing t)ehavioral/functional challenges in
group homes, day programs, vocational and family settings. Super>^ 2 dWdans.

House Manaoer Lawrence Psychological Center g/,934 _ a/^ggg
^  Lawrence, MA

•  Administrative, clinical and financial management of a group home serving 4
m» with severe and persistent mental illness.

Adjunct Faculty New England College; Henniker, NH
www.nec.edu

Teach graduate and undergraduate courses In psychology. counseSng., program
development and evaluation

9/1994 • Present

Director of Masters

Degree Program in New England College; Henniker. NH
Mental Health Counseling

1/1998-3/2002

Developed and imptaoented curriculum for degree program.

Oversight of curriculum to insure quality, academic standards and student retention.
Development and execution of marketing ptaa
Provided academic advising and mentoring to students.
Faculty recruitment, supervision and monitoring of academic quality

jmConsullant New England College; Henniker. NH Present^
Devetaped cumcula for a certificate and CA.G.S. in the inlegration of behavioral health
Into primary medicine.

-3-
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KENNETH M. BROWN, M.D.,M.P.H.

EDUCATION
Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Fcllowsh^1994-1996
University of Miami/ Jackson Memorial Hospital

1991-1994 Psychiatry Residency
Medical University of South Carolina
Institute of Psychiatry
Charleston, South Carolina

1987-1992 Doctor of Medicine
Tulane University School of Medicine
Tulane Medical Center
Charity Hospital
New Orleans, Louisiana

1987-1991 Masters of Public Health
Tulane University School of Tropical Medicine and Public Health
New Orleans, Louisiana

1983-1987 Bachelor of Science Engineering
Major: Biomedical Engineering
Tulane University School of Engineering

1985-1986 Tulane University Honor Scholar Junior Year Abroad
Major: Engineering
University of Southampton
Southampton, England

EMPLOYMENT

2000-Present Medical Director

Hampstead Hospital
Hampstead, New Hampshire

1996-2000 Chief, Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist
Hampstead Hospital
Hampstead, New Hampshire
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EMPLOYMENT (cont.)
1996-Present Solo Private Practice (Inpatient and Outpatient)

Child, Adolescent and Aduk Psychotherapy and Psychopharmacology
Hampstead Hospital
218 East Road

Hampstead, New Hanq)shire

1997-2000 Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist
Center for Life Management
Community Mental Health Center
Derry, New Hampshire

1991 -1994 Court Appointed Expert Witness
Court Appointed Designated Examiner
Charleston County Court

1993-1994 Treating Psychiatrist
South Carolina Department ofMental Heahh
Dual Diagnoses Community Mental Health Clinic
Charleston, South Carolina

ACADEMIC AFFILIATIONS

1999-Present Adjunct Professor in Clinical Research
Dartmouth University
Hanover, New Hampshire

RESEARCH ~ —

2001-2003 Sub-investigator
Access Clinical Trials

A Three- Week. Multicenter. Randomized. Double-Blind. Placebo-

Controlled. Parallel-Group Safety and Efficacy Study of Extended-Release
Carbamazepine in Patients with Bipolar Disorder.
Shire Laboratories

A Three- Week. Multicenter. Randomized. Double-Blind. Placebo-

ControUed. Parallel-Group Safety and Efficacv Study of Extended-Release

Carbamazepinc in Lithium Failure Patients with Bipolar Disorder.

Shire Laboratories

A Double-Blind. Parallel Study of the Safety. Tolerabilitv and Preliminary

Efficacv of Flutamide Compared to Placebo in Patients with Anorexia.
Nervosa

Vela Pharmaceuticals Inc.
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RESEARCH fcont.)

A Phase III. Rflndomi2ed. Double-Blind. Placebo-CootroUed Study of
Safety and Efficacy of C-1073 fMifeuristone^ in Patients with Major
Depressive Disorder with Psychotic Features Who are pot Receiving
Antideoressants or Aatipsvchotics.

Corccpt Therapeutics, Inc.

Olflrizapine Versus Ziorasidone in the Treatment of Schizophrenia

Eli Lilly and Company

A Multicenter. Randomized. Double-Blind. Study of Aripiptazole Versus
Placebo in the Treatment of Acutely Manic Patients with Bipolar

Disorder.

Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute

PUBLICATIONS and POSTER PRESENTATIONS

Rppppinn SiK^flined Release in Adolescents With Comorbid Attention-
Deficit/ Hvperactivitv Disorder and Depression

Daviss, Bentivoglio, Racusin, Brown, et al.,
J. Am Acad. Child Adolescent Psychiatry, 40:3, March 2001

A Retrospective Study of Citalopram in Adolescents with Depression

Bostic J.Q., Prince J., Brown K., Place S.
Journal of Child and Adolescent Psychopharmacology 2001; 11; 159-166.

ritfllnpram for the Treatment of Adolescent Anxiety Disorders: A Pilot
Study.

Prince J., Bostic J.Q., Monuteaux M., Brown K., Place S.
Psychopharmacoogy Bulletin 2002; 36:1.00-107

2001 Citalooram in Adolescents with Mood and Anxiety Disorders: A Chart Review.
Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association,
New Orleans, LA 5/9/2001

2001 Citalooram in Adolescents with Mood and Anxiety Disorders.
Presented at the Annual Meeting of NCDEU,
Phoenix, AZ 5/29/2001

2001 Citalooram in Adolescents with Mood. Anxiety, and Comorbid Conditions.
Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association 2001
Institute on Psychiatric Services,
Orlando, FL 10/11/2001
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honors and offices held

ACADEMIC AWARDS AND OFFICES

—Golden Apple Award for Excellence in teaching medical students
—Residency Education Committee representative
—Vice President Tulane Medical School Class of 1991

-President Jewish Medical Student Organization
ACADEMIC AWARDS AND OFHCES (coot.)
—Tau Beta Pi (engineering honor society)
-A^ha Eta Mu Beta (biomedical engineering honor society)
—Alpha Epsilon Delta (premedical honor society)
"Honor Scholar Junior Year Abroad Program

SOCIETy MEMBERSHIPS

"American Medical Association

-American Psychiatry Association
—American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry
-New Hampshire Medical Association
—New Hampshire Psychiatry Association
-New England Society of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

CERTIFICATIONS

—Board Certified General Psychiatry
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, #43597

"Board Eligible, Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

LICENSES

—New Hampshire, Maine, South Carolina, Florida, Louisiana
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gBE^SseeRngemplo^enn^anagPmeni, human services and customer service.

Experience;

Center for Life Management Derry, NH July 2017-Present

Interim Director of Housing 2/2019-Present

• Works collaboratively with The Bureau Housing Supports to outreach and assist
homeless individuals

•  Engage homeless towards finding permanent housing/treatment for mental illness or
substance misuse.

•  Refer individuals for clinical screening and diagnostics Into case management services.
•  Participate within the local LSOA, foster cooperation and collaboration between service

providers, as well as follow through on referrals made to CLM In regards to possible
homeless Individuals.

•  Follow state and federal regulations regarding use of funds and services for the
homeless and mentally III.

• Adhere to CLM and State of NH regulations regarding documentation and HMIS data
collection

• Attend /participate in HMIS data Committee, Advisory Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings

■ • Attend /participate In HMIS data Committee, Advisorv Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings

• Assist In the development of NOFA documentation and HMIS Annual Performance
Reports

•  Update APR's for PATH outreach. All Projects for housed Participants that are in SPC,
SPCII, PHlandFHl

•  Follow through with Audits preformed on all Projects done by BHS
• Adhere to policies with Rental calculations, Redeterminatlons, FMR's
• Assist with getting documentation of homelessness for HUD's definition of the

Chronically homelessness

• Voucher participants that fall Into the HUD's CH definition and assist them with finding
housing

• Work with landlords who accept the housing voucher through CLM and BHS to assist
with and problem solve Issues with participants

•  Reports to VP and OA of CLM on a weekly basis
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Housing Development Assistant 10/2018-2/2019

• Works cbllaboratlvely with Housing Director to Outreach and assist homeless
individuals.

•  Engage homeless towards finding permanent housing/treatment for mental illness or
substance misuse.

•  Refer Individuals for clinical screening and diagnostics Into case management services.
•  Participate within the local LSDA, foster cooperation and collaboration between service

providers, as well as follow through on referrals made to CLM In regards to possible
homeless Individuals.

•  Follow state and federal regulations regarding use of funds and services for the
homeless and mentally ill.

•  Adhere to CLM and State of NH regulations regarding documentation and HMIS data
collection

•  Attend /participate in HMIS data Committee, Advisory Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings

• Assist In the development of NOFA documentation and HMIS Annual Performance
Reports

•  Assist individuals w/ applying for Medicald and Social Security benefits
•  Perform other duties as assigned by Director

PATH Outreach Worker 7/2017-10/2108

•  Coordinate intake and needs for assessments for all clients and work with clients and
their barriers to obtain services/housing and/or perform a warm handoff to In-house
case manager.

•  Perform outreach services, contacting homeless persons In all places where they
congregate in our catchment area.

•  Provide supportive services in a non-judgmental manner.
•  Provide Information, referrals, and advocacy to assist clients in accessing services and

resources.

•  Assist clients with procuring necessary documents and services such as ID card, birth
certificate, social security, disability Income.

•  Assist clients with housing applications, complete supportive and subsidized housing
paperwork, and advocate for clients with prospective landlords.

Work OoDortunltlcs Unlimited Dover, NH 2016-2017

Career Resource Specialist Seacoast Area
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• Assist clients develop career goals/Work support and assessment
•  Intake coordination for DCYF clients

•  Create and develop Individual Support Plans/Coaching clients to help maximize success
•  Job retention skills/Job coaching skills

• Mock Interviewing skills and assessment

•  Job Development/Business Development

Sutton Hill Center-Genesis Healthcare North Andover, MA 2016-Present

Recreation Assistant

•  Daily activities for resident-groups of S-12 residents at a time in groups
• One on One visits offer sensory stimulation

•  Prepare progress notes quarterly for resident's progress
•  Assist with transporting, communicating and setting up for activity programs

Rutland Healthcare and Rehabilitation -Genesis Healthcare Rutland, VT 2015-2016

Recreation Assistant

•  Daily activities for resident-groups of 5-12 residents at a time in groups
• One on One visits offer sensory stimulation

•  Prepare progress notes quarterly for resident's progress
•  Assist with transporting, communicating and setting up for activity programs

Balance Chiropractic PILC Concord, NH 2008-2015

Office Manager

• Maintained all charts and intakes for patients

•  Scheduling, collecting co-pays, calling insurance companies for benefits
•  Following up on charts and following up with payments from patients
• Ordered supplies, supplements, fielding calls to schedule and reschedule patients

Children's Place .Manchester, NH 2007-2008
5

Store Manager

•  Ran all aspects of the stores operation from scheduling, payroll, shipment, floor sets
•  Training all management and part time sales associates
•  Customer service

Oivmpia Sports Salem, NH 1995-2007

Store Manager
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Part time from 1995-1997, Manager Trainee, Store Manager 2000

Ran all operations of store and maintained good customer service
Training for all management and part time sales associates

Made sure to reach sales goals and inventory

Volunteer Experience

YMCA Allard Center of Goffstown

•  Volunteered for co-coaching of competitive swim team (18 kids ages 11-16)
•  Volunteered for Kohl's Cares Softball tournament to raise $500
•  Volunteered for Zumba/dance-a-thon to raise over $200

Education;

Rutland High School 1997

Seacoast Career School 2006

References:

Erin Mitchell- YMCA of Greater Nashua, Director of Achievement

919-518-3415

Kristin Jones, BA- Counselor

603-425-9233

Amanda St. Cyr - Supply Supervisor, Elliot Hospital

603-486-6122
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CONTRACTOR NAME:

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
dba CLM Center for Life Management

CLM Supportive Housing Contract

(fonnerly known as: Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing 1 Contract)

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vic Tope President/CEO $176,485 1.5% $2,647
Diana Lachapelle CFO $140,000 1.5% $2,100
Steven Arnault VP Operations, Quality &

Compliance
$135,732 1.5% $2,036

Kenneth Brown MD Medical Director $260,000 1.5% $3,900
Angela Morin Housing Coordinator $42,000 10% $14,883
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Commissioner

Christine L. Santinlcllo

Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271.9474 1-800-832-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 22. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed t>elow to
provide Permanent Housing and Coordinated, Entry Programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of
Care Program, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by
$1,657,969 from $1.606,764 to $3,264,733 and by extending the completion dates from June 30,
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item
#46. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

Community
Action

Partnership
Strafford

County.
Dover. NH

177200-

B004
Statewide $38,524 $38,524 $77,048

Community
Action

Program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH

177203-

B003
Statewide $86,722 $86,722 $173,444

FIT/NHNH.
Inc.,

Manchester,

NH

157730-

B001
Concord $99,046 $101,469 $200,515

FIT/NHNH.

Inc.,

Manchester,

NH

157730-

B001
Concord $68,585 $68,585 $137,170

The Dcporimcnl of Health and Human Seruicxs' Mission is to join communities and fam ilies
iM providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.

r.
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The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center,

Inc..

Laconia, NH

154480-

B001
Laconia $99,835 $102,211 $202,046

Southwestern

Community
Services, inc.,

Keene, NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$85,230 $87,728 $172,958

Southwestern

Community

Services, Inc.,
Keene, NH

177511-

R001
Statewide $86,552 $66,552 $173,104

Southwestern

Community
Services, Inc.,

Keene. NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$281,824 $288,544 $570,368

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry. NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435 $273,459 $540,894

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230 $303,674 $576,904

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-

B009
Statewide $130,822 $130,822 $261,644

T ri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-

B009

Grafton,

Coos, and

Carroll

Counties

$88,959 $89,679 $178,638

Total: $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733
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Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $1,606,784 $0 $1,606,764

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $1,657,696 $1,657,696

Total $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually, the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Program competitive
application process. As part of this process, the Department is required to provide hUD with each
potential vendor and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process, HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As
previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019,
Item #46.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, access to supportive sen/ices and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness.

Approximately 3.000 individuals will be served from July 1. 2020 to July 1, 2021.
Vendors facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing while

providing connections with community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following performance
measures:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and-expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information



His Excellency. Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

Page 4 of 4

System, unless the vendor is required by law to use an alternate means of data
collection. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of
shelter and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governpr and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and
families that are vulnerable in unsafe and deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if
data is not collected as required by these contracts, the Department will t>e in non-compliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of.federal funding for these and other types
of homeless and permanent supportive services.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/FAIN# NH0014L1T001912. NH0057L1T001910.
NH0060L1T001907. NH0096L1T001904

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing I

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing I

This 1® Amendment to the Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing I contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 10 Tsienneto Rd. Detry. NH. 03038.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019, (Item #46). lhe Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain surns specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P.-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language". Section 2.. Renewal., the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$576,904; ■

3. Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.4. to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

■1.2.4.1. NH00i4LlT001811 (Grant Year 1)

1..2.4.2 NH0O14L1TOOT912 (Grant Year 2)
4. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing Program

Funding. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.27.1. to read:-
1.2.7.1 Not to exceed $576,904

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:
1 ."2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance $221,592 $252,036
1.2.8.2. Supportive Services $39,600 $45,000
1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $6.636 $6.638
1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount $273,230 $303,674
1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) , $69,967 $77,577.75

The Mental Health Cente;
lor Southern Now Hampshire Amendn^enl #1 Contractor initials
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A01 Page 1 of 3 Dale ^0



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Housing I

All terms and condlOona of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This emendment ahall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Dale I ^ Name:Cv^riV

Oat

'\

Dtfec-to? PE.W.S

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire

Name:

Title:

The Menial Health Center
for Southern New Hempehire Amendmenl fli
SS-2020-BH$-04-PGRMA-04-A01 Pefl® 2 of 3



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, Permanent Houeing I

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as lo form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

J 0D
ameDate

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor end Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Maniat Hoalih Center
for Southern Now Hempshlro
SS-202I>-BHS-04-PERMA-04-A01

Amcndmonl#l
Page 3 of 3



Jeffrey A. Mejriri
Commluloner

Cbfi»ilBe LSaeUftlello
Director
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•  STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Dmsror^ of economic & housing stability .

129 PLEASAffi STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 l.S0W$2-3345 E*L 9474

* Fii:.60}-27M130 TOD Acceas: I-80O-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.jov

May 28. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the HonorablB Council

State House
Concord. Nevv Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

■  Authoriie Ihe Departmenl of Heanh'and HOman Services, Division of Economic and Housing.
Slabilitv lo enter into sole source agreements witti ttie vendors below to provK^e Permanent Housing
and CMrdinaied Entry Programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families ttirough..fh^pSSnuum ofDare f^rogram Kan amount not to.exceed $1,608,764, effective July 1. 2019,

"  ̂ j ̂ • e:.'../Kj:; thfntirth.itiHA 30 2020.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Project Name Vendor#.. Location
SFY 2020'
Amount

Community Action' v
Partnemhio Strafford County

Coordinated-Entry, i772o6^'B004 Statewide $38,524 ,

Cbrrirriunity Action Program
Belknap-Merririiack Counties. Coordinated Entry ' 177203-8003 Statewide. $86,722

.FIT/NHNH, Inc.-

Concord Community
Leasingli Permanent •
Housing

157730-B001. .. Concord $99,046

FIT/NHNH. Inc.
Concord Permanent

Housinq,
157730-8001 Concord $68,585

the .Lakes Region Mental
Health Center, Inc.

McGrath Street. ■

Permanent Housing
154480-B001 Laconia ■ $99,835

Southwestern'Community

Seiyices, Inc.

Permanent Housing.
Cheshire County 177511-RObl

Cheshire &

Sullivan

.Counties

$85,230

Southwestern Community
Services. Inc. ■

Cbordinaled Entry 177511;R0P1 Statewide. $86,552

■Southwestern Cornmunity .
Services; Inc. - •

Shelter Plus Carp : .
-Permaheni Housing 177511-R0D1

Cheshire .&
Siillivan'
Counties

'$261.82"4

The Mental Health Center for
Sputhern. New Hampshire
dba CLM Center fpr Life ■" ■ ' '
•Management

Family Housing-.! , ■
Perrh'a.rient Housing 174li6-R0.01

Vyesterh-
Rockingham

" •Cpunty
$267,435
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Vendor Name Project Name Vendor # , Location
SPY 2020

Amount

The Mental Health Center for"
Southern New Hampshire
dba CLM Center, for Life
Management

Permanent Housing 1 174116-R001

Western

Rqckihgham
County

$273,230

Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.

Coordinated Entry 177195-B009 Statewide . $130,822

. Tri-County' Community Action
Program, Inc.

Perrrianenl Supportive
Housing 1. Expansion""

177195-B009

Grafton.

Coosi and
.Carroll.
Counties

$88,959

Total; .. $1,606,7e4.

■  Funds are available in the following acoounl for State Fiscal Year 2020, upon the availability and
contihued appropriation of. funds in the future operating budgets„with authority to
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal.Years through the.Budget Office if-
needed and justified. . . .

05-95^2-«23010.7?27 HEALTH AND SOCIAL.SERVICES OEPT OF H^

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Nunriber Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $1,606,764.

Total $1,606,764;

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal" regulations,, require the Deparlrnent to specify
each vendor's name during the annuai, federal Conlinuum of Care'Program renewal application Process
prior to the grant award being issued.; The .U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Develop.me.nl (HUD)
Reviews the-applications and subsequently awards funding based on criteria. The

" and timing of grant terms do not align with state or fede.ral fiscal years.. The sjart date of a Pranl 's based
on the"month iri whlch each grant's drigirial federal agreement was issued.- This results in Coritinuum of
Care Program grant start dates; and subsequent renewal approval requests, occumng m vanous months

..throughout the year.

The attached, agreements represent twelve {12) .of twenty-nine (29) total agreemerits, "jany ?'
which have renewal'dates .dispersed throughout the calendar year, with
throughout the stale to.ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire s
Continuum of Care Pr6gr;am-. .

■ The purpose of these requests Is for. the provision of Permanent Housing and Coordinale.d $ntrv
Proorams that shall deliver renlaWeasing assistance'; service access, supportive semces and associated
administrative services-targeted to serve approximately three-thousand (3000) participants from July 1.
2019 through Jurie-30; 2020. ■ ■ -
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Using the "Housing First' model and the development of Statiilization and Crisis Mahjagemeht
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing conriections with community and mainstream services to maximize partldpant's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to .
address the probiems of housirig and hornelessness In a. coordinated; comprehensive, and strategic
fashion' The Continuurh of Care serves three main purposes: .

. A strategic planning process for addressing homelessrtess in the community. .

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing hornelessness
■  . . on a year-round basis. • > .

•  An opportunity for.communities to submit ah application to^the U.S. Departrnent of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting hou?ing and, sup^rt services for homeless
individuals and families.

The fbllowing performance measures/bbjectiv'es will.be used to measure contract compliance and .
' vendor performance:'

i  Annual compliance reviews shall be perforrned that include, the collection of data relating to
compliance vyilh'administ'rativ.e hjlesand contract,ual agreements.'

^  statistical repprts'shall be subrnitt'ed on asemi-annua.lljasis from all funded v.endofs. Including
■ variouVdembgraphicinforniationahd income and exp^ns'erejxJrtsJncluding match dollars.-

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-hpusing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entrv housing.' '
or outreach/sup'portjve bervices will-be. required to rhaintain timely aqd accurate data entry, In
the New Hampshire'Homeless Management .lnfprmatibn Syste"m, .unless they are required by
law to use an alternate nheans of data collection. The.NH Homeless Managernent Information
System Will be. the primary, reporting tool for outcomes and activities pf shelter arid housing

'  . programs funded through this contract. , . ' . • • .. •

As .referenced In Exhibit C-1 of.each' of these contracts! the Department reserves the right to ,
extend edch agreement for up-to two'.'(02).'additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, avaifable funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Go.ve.mor and Executive
Council.

Should, the Goyempr and Executive Courtcil riot authorlze lhese requests.-Permanent Housing,
and Coordinated Entry'Pr(^raiTis!and Supportive Senrices for New Hampshire, homeless individuals ari.b
families may noVbe available.in .thelr comrriunlties, and there may be an increase in demand.for services
placed upon the'region's ibcai vvelfare autHprities. It.may also cause Individuals arid/or families to become
KomeI.ess; '.. •

Source of funds: .100®/o ■ Federal Funds, from.the U.S.. Pepartmeht of Housirig arid Urban
Developmerit, Office of Corrirhunity Planning and Development, Calalog'of Federal Dorpeistic Assistance
Nurriber (CFDA) #14.267. . • _

•Area.sefyed:'.'Statewide .



His Excellency, Governor.Christopher T. Sununu ,
and the Honorable Council
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In the.event that ̂ e Federal funds become no longer available. General funds wil) not be
requested to support ttiese programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
)mmissloner-.

/, ■ j

.A . • . '

The Dcpariflieiit o/Veallh oi\ii Nnnmi S^vicef' Mission is to join an<lfnmilia
in providing opportiiniiies for cilUens to oehieue heollh and independence.



Subjcci: Coniinuum efCnrt. Pemint>enl Housinp I. SS-202Q-BHS-04.PFRMA.Q4 fORM NUMBER P-37(venion 5/8/15)
tlaiiss- agreemcni sod al) of its aflachmcnts shell become public upon'submiision to Covcmor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

general PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name .
Depanmeni of Health end Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life Management

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)434.1577

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan 0. White, Director

1.6 Account Number

05.95-42.423010.7927

102-500731

1.2 State Agency Address
179 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 0330!

1.4 Contractor Address

lOTsienneio Rd

Derry, NH 03038

1.7 Completion Date

ione 30. 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

S273.230

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271.9631

1. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

■J)C^
1.13 Acknowlcdgemcnl: Sioicof Hft»^i£ounty of
On 5/9^/'^ • ■beforeiheundcrsigncdomccr, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12 or saiisfnciorily'
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11. and Kknowlcdgcd thai s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12. '■
i.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Ppace

[Seal] ^
1.13.2 Name andjnifb oPNoiary or Justice oQihe Peace

JUUF A. POSltXAUD. Notary Public
•Vi:.;*- o' K'cw Hoinoeive

i^V Cotsunlssioti tUpu'M Auguat E), 2022

1.14 ...Slate

e
aiureency

1.16 Approvalby

By:

epanmemof Adminr

1^ Name and Title ofStnte Agency Signatory

(1^7 M .Q/.fkni/lfi
AdminitfraiionJDivisionofPcrsonnel Ofoppticable)

Director, On:

1.17 Approval ^the Gcncrnl (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

8y: 0„. 4/^/9
1.18 Approval by the Covcmor and Executive Council (if opplkable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The Suie of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in bk>ck I.I ("State*'), engages
contractor ideniifted in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
end the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBrr A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
epplicable, this Agreement, end all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreentent as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case -
the Agreement shall become cffcctiv^on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
l.U ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTeciive Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event thai this Agreement does not
become cfTeciive, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL nature OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon (he availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identir>ed in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRrCEA>RICE LIMITATION/

payment.

5.1 The coniroci price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price
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5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permined by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with (he performance of the Services, (he
Contractor shall comply with all stuuics, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal oppominicy
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with commurucation
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate agairtsi employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin end will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all (he
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales D^artment of Labor (41
C.f .R. Pert 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire'or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
persoruiel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perfonn the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6).monih3 aHcr the
Completion Date in block i .7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effori to
perform the Services to hire, any person who it a State
employee or ofTicial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Conirocting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or tmre of the following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constinitc an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform (he Services saiisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specilyingthe Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, In the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under (his
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which >vould otherwise accrue to (he Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice untij such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to ihc'Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages (he Stole suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached ar>d pursue ajiy of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.'

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information ond things developed or obtained during (he
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemeni, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
ell whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
(he Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Conftdcniiaiiiy of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter9l>A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In (he event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, wd the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Fine! Report
described in the anached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

(he performance of ihis Agreement the Controclor is in all
respects an independent contractor, aitd is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, egenis or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to Its employees.

12. ASS1CNM ENT/DELEC ATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior wrinen notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without (he prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify ond hold hannless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by (he
State, its officers and employees, and ony and all claims,
liabilities or penalties ossened against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain ood maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance agunsi all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of (he whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanmcnt of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale ofNcw
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Conirectof shall fumish to the Conlracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, t certiri€ete($)
ofinsurance for eJl insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, ccnificatefs) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than ihiny (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the Insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be enachcd and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
Of her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants lhat the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, iherequirtmcrits of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
C Workers' Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the '
requirements of N.H. RSA ch^ter 281 'A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to (his Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Competuaiion in (he _
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A and any
applicable renewaJ(s) (hereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisicns hereof afier any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to (hat Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event ofDefault shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Evenl.of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a perry hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 end 1.4, herein.

16. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afier approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and (he words contained
therein shall in no svay be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of (his Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In (he event any of the provisions of
this Agreement ere held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.-

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All.Se^lces

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with lirhited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH OHMS

Bureau of Housing Supports (6HS)
129 Pleasant Street
Concord.-NH 03301

1.2. - The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal-or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliarice therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, a!) obligations of the State are
. contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. Tha State,
as the Collaborative Applicant for'the Balance of State CoC. and/or, the recipient of the CoC
funding, has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the
application process. However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In
no event shall the State be liable for costs Incurred or payment of any services performed by the
Contractor prior to the Suite's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipiant, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
bepartment of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to miake audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, eppropriale HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data Into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and" Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer ell questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

MKCSNHPHI exNODA C««n>CW WW. ^
SS-202MHS-04*EnMA-<M PipoloJS j



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, In accordance with CoC Interim rule. 24 CFR Pert 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Perrnanent Housing program serving approximately twenty (20)
homeless individuals experiencing mental health and or substance ebuse Issues to reside in
scattered site epartmenls within Western Rockingham County. NH.. and which includes, but Is
not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilization of the 'Housing First* model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not Imposed
beyond those reQuired by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a slabilizalion plan and crisis management plan, with the .participant, at.
Intake and. at a minlmum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services Is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant In obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community Indeperidently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used In accordance with 24 CFR 570 and must establish and maintain
sufficient records to enaWe HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Continuum- of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing arid operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Rflcofds of Homeless-Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status In accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessnesa Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish 'at risk of homelessriess" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identrfied in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant whb moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual as&aulL or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that Includes, but Is
not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, only if the original violence is. not already documented In the program
participant's case file. This may be written observation of the housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a victim service provider, social worker,
legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance; medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records; or written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or by the head of household.

MHCSNHPHI ExWHiA c«ns/»cta WttiH
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conllnuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would Include, threats from a third-party,
such as a ̂ end or family mamber of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be
written observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation
from a victim service provider, social vrarker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; current restraining order recent court order or other court records;

•  law enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the- violence, including
emails, volcemails. text messages, and social media posts: or a written certification
by the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4.- Records of Annual Income. For each program partlcipent who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program parliclpant, the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of annual Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by-the
program participant and Income received tDefore the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents ere unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third parly (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents end third-party verifcation are unobtainable, the
written carlification by the program participant of the,amount of Income that the
program participant Is .reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program.Panicioant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or et-hsk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those
program participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted
the service package accordingly, end including case management services as
provided In 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F): and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance wHh the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 576.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards In 24 CFR 578.75(b). including Inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supporlive services
provided under the Contractor's program end the amounts' spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annuaiiy
and that the.&ervica package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oraanlzalional conflict-bf-lnlerest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

MHCSNHPHt, , e*WtA
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A -

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care. Board connict-of'lnterest requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other ConfliclB requirements In 24 CFR 576.95fdl.

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Partlcioation requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(0).

2.6.3. Affinmatlvetv -Furtherino Fair Houslna by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to Inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements In 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and Implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as

-  required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program (urticipant will not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subreclpient and
consistent with State and local laws regarding privacy end obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period In excess of
the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. PrcQfam Reoortlna Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRl: Within thirty (30) days.after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In .particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed In the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the Slate, and
submitted to the address listed In section 1.1. Exhibit A; and ^
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3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the Stale in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have^approprlate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend sucli meetings five
(5) wording days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the chenge.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to ell terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
'  Application, federal fiscal year 2018, #ST-424; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the perfonnance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to. those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of

Care Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The. Contractor shad be accountable to ell performance measures as detailed In the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Dollverabfes.

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in.Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
In accordance v/ith the CoC Program intenrh aile; 24 CFR Pert 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanenl Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section
2.2. Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

✓

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources: employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals: and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed In Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the Genera! Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A; Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8. Pnce Limitation and for (he time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement-is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
evaliabla under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%"

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. GrantNumber: NH0014LltOOl8l1

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housirtg & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care, Permanent Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. not to exceed $273,230

1.2.6. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Prograrh;

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $221,592

1.2.8.2. Supportive Services: $45,000

1.2.6.2.1 Mental Health Services $39,600

1.2.8.2.2 Outreach $5,400

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: , S6.638

1.2.8.4. Tote! program amount: $273,230

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $69,967

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current end/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As'part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared In accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited finencial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:
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NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to t>e used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. if the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of en audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller Generel of the United States In "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions.* within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used In this Agreement, the term "Project Costs* shall rnean a!) expenses
directly .or indirectly Iricurred by the Contractor in the-performance of the -Proje'ct Activities, as
determined by thai State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as-allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and v^th the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonpront
Sut)Conlractor$ shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed In 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under Five program components: permanent
housing; transitionel housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components.are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found In 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described In 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be. documented with each payment request:

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subparl D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement In 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records Indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution Is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
In-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.
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3.4. Payment of.Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.

3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible end
allowable costs as stated In Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have vwltten approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as.specified In this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 10i2-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be rnade through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time'period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 6.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for (his Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by (he Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8.,
all Invoices may t>e assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinQsuDoor1sinvoices@dhhs.nh.aov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such reco.rds and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses. -

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

.  3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are riot determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures. Inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs.- Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-complianc^wilh
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any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 8. or
NH-HMIS dala.entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General-Provisions P'37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years', may be made
-by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget OfTtce without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and Justified.

5. Expense Ellalbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/evailability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
'Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care'
Program, for contract services.

5.2. OoeratinQ Exoenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include;

.  5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (Including p'roperty and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of (he housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than frfty (50) pert^nt of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electhclty, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDoortive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive servicescostsmustcomply withal! HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in (he pertnenent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. . Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(8) (2):
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5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hlrir^ a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, anenging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs;

5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homeiessnass, including
providing meals and snacks, end comprehensive and coordineted devetopmentai
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. ' Education Services. The costs of Improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible. Including
classroom, online and/or computer. Instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing, meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.6. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
P6r80n(s) under the. supervision of licensed attorneys, for adylce end
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtaln.and retain housing:

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These ̂ rvlces must be necessary to assist the program, participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed Items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;.

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services-are crisis Interventions; counseling; Individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psycholropic medications or explanations about the
use end management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and intervention, as well as identlfyirtg potential
program participants, are eligible: ^
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5.3.2.U. Substance abuse treatmen! services. The costs of program participant Intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and Individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatienl detoxirication and other Inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 57&(e) (15);

5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described In 24CFR 578.53(6) (1)-(16)
of this eectlon is being, directly delivered by the recipient or.subreclpieni, eligible
cbsis for those services are described In 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section Is not
an ellgible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional llcensure or cartificalions
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants v^o are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
Hiy/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual, assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for-rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who Is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth In 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) end 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance paymerii of the last rhonth's rent may be provided to the landlord. In addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's .rent.

■ 5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
•  by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,

taking intp account the location, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor rtiay use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one rhonth's rent tb pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasino fu^s
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.
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5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housir^g codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the Jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.

5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
recllltote the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipienta may

require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Hdusing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance Is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to tease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not Include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligibte under 24 CFR 576.43 through 576.57. because
those costs are eligible as'part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring end evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may Includa the enlire
salary, wages, end related costs allocabte to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program^ Involveprogram administration assignments, or the pro rate share of the^lary.

MHCSNH PH I »ryJ020 £ifW«e Contnicty IniiliU . ̂  ̂ ,

SS-2020eMS.04-PERMA-<M P»((« ? C* 10



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
melhods'for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
Include the following:

5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Oevetoping systems for assuring compliance with program'
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Interagency agreements .and, agreernents with
subrecipients and contractors' to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitonng program act'ivltie's for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
reigard to the program Include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third-party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services; ^

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and .services as rental of purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, .office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HDD-
Sponsored Coritinuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 576.31.

5.6. leasinQ!

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons.for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Conlra'clori their
parent organization, any other related or9apizetion(s). or oiganizations that ere members
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of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements;

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or pad of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable In relation to rents being charged
In the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking Into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities,
faclliUes. and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents. '

5.6:1.3. Ulllllles. If electricity, gas. and water are Included In the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If .utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
Is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the' landlord In
addition to security deposit end payment of the first month's rent.

I, 5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
ere required as specified In 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program parlicipants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program Income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
576.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs end must be reasonable In comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Oocumentation of rent
reasonableness must be Kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-detenmlned fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contraclor cannot leases building that it already owns to Itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance wilh all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any pttfer
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requirements of (he jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, internet access,
deafilrtg, parking, pool charges, etc. ere at (he participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

8. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. end accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibiBty applies to funds disbur^d in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financidl management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

UKCSNH PH) IVMM ' ExNMO
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SPFCIAt PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals end. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants end
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State l.ewe; if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal end
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Dotormlnatlonr Eligibllily determinations shell be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made end remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination fomns r^uired by the Department, the Contractor
shaD maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ell
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ell forms and documentation
regarding eilgibility determinations that the Depertmeni may request or require.

4. Fair Heerlnga: The Conbactor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
Individuals declared Ineligible have a right io a lair hearing regarding that determination, the
Corit/Bctor hereby cover\anls and agrees that all applicants for services shail be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re>applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to afeir
hearing In eocordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that il is a breach of (his Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employmeni on behalf of (he Contractor; any Sub-Contractor or
the Slate in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slate may terminate this Contract end eny sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or ineny
other document, contrect or understanding, il is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
eny purpose or for eny services provided to eny Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
end no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for eny services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by (he
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to (he contrary contained in the Contract.nothing
herein contained shell be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at eny lime during the term of this Coniract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
iri excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundera. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from eny future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
EjthWt C - Spoctal ProvWoftJ Contniaor tnlUnii \
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by (he Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. Whan the ConlTBctor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY: '

6. Maintenance of Rocorda: In addition to U^e eligibility records specified ebove. the Contractor
covenants end agrees to maintain the foilowlns records during the Controct Period;

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
incorne received or coDected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in socordance with accounting procedures end practices which sufTiciently and
property reflect ail such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, end
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, end original evidence of costs such as
purchase reqinsitlons end orders, vouchers, requisitions (or motertats, inventories, valuations of
In-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility..for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ell invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate and as prescn'bed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit; Contractor shall submit en annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of (he
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordence with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Orgenizations' end (he provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. ActivlUes and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Offrce (GAO standards)'as
they pertain to fitianclal complianca audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: (Xiring the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant lo
the Contrecl for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and tronscripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to end not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made urtder the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such en
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be conftdenlial and shallnol
be disclosed by tho Cantraclor. provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made lo
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties end for purposes
directly connected to the edmlnistralion of (he services and (he Contrecl; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by eny party of any information concerning a recipient for eny purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or Ihe Contractor's responsibilities wiih
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the redeem, his
attorney or guardian.

ExhfiXlC - Special Provisions Cootroctor Inlilata
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants end conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefoHowing
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

at] costs and non-aliowabte expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed salisfeclory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be subrhltted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report; A flnal report shall be submitted within thir^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shell
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
end other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereuhder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed efter the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report.the beparlmcnt shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Cohtrectcr.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports end other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shell include thefoliowing
stetement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) vras financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided in pan
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval end Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing; production,
distribution or use.'The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facllltlee: Compliance with Laws and Regulatlone: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and vrith any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facillly. If any governmental license or
permit shell be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contrect the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an'Equal Employment-
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has,
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50^
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more employees, il will maintain a cuneni EEOP on file and submit en EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than S25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient win provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying II is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, end medical end educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Cenification Forms are available et: http://www.ojp.usdoj/8bout/ocr/pdfsfcert.pdf.

17. Limited Englleh Proficiency (LEP):'as clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Sen/ices for persons with Limited English Proficiency, end resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrtmination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title Vl of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Us programs.

16. Pilot Program for EnharKoment of Contractor Employee Whistleblowor F^otectione: The ■
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simptifled Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Empioyee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Empuoyees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whisUeblowrer rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established et
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the Nationel Defense Authorization Ad for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shell inform its employees in writing, in the predominant lahguage of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights end protections.under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractore: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use 'subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility end eccountabllity for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate tt)e subcontractor's.ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement thai'specifies activliies end reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
(he subcontrador'.s performance Is not edequaie. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as (he Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

• with those conditions.

When U>e Contractor delegates e function to e subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a writien agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation'will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

ExhWI C - Special Provlsiona Conimctor tnltlels
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19.4. Provide to OHHS en annual schedule Idenlifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, end when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shell, et Us discretion, review end epprove ell subcontracts.

If the Contrector identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement ere identified, the Contractor shell
take corrective action.

20. Contract OofinNlons:

20.1. COSTS: Shell mean those direct and indlreci items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost end eccounting principles established
in eccordehce with state and federal laws. reguiatic)ns. rules end orders.

20.2. - DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submined by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department end containing e description of the services end/or
goodS'to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall -
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or slate laws, regulations, rules, orders, end
policies, etc. ere referred to in the Contrect. the said reference'shal) be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be emended or revised from dme to lime.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contrect will not supplant.any existing {ederal funds available for these services.

EihWi C - Sp«dal Provlslonj Contmcto/ iNUob - -
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Rovlelons to Porm P-37, General Provlalcns

1.1. Section 4. CondllionBl Nature ol Aqraemenl. is replaced as foDows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, irKluding without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upon contimjed appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive adion that reduces, eiimlnetes. or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or evaiietxlity of furuJing for (his Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided.in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In pan. in no event shaO the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
(he event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold, payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shell have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately u^n giving the Conlrectbr rtotice of such reduction, termination or
.modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Accountfs) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account-
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stete, 30 deys after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In (he event of eeriy terminetion, the Contractor shaii, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, deveiop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present end future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Trensitioo Ptan including, but not iimiled to. eny Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shell provide ongoing communlcetion and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 in (he event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are trenslticned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shell provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other affected individuals
about the transition, the Contractor shal) include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Ronowal

2.1. The Deparlment reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon selisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

ExNbll 0-1 - RevislOAi/EjicepUon) lo Standard Contract Language Conlmetor tnlUals
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CERTtPICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply ̂  the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free WoHcplace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100^90, title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et aeq.), end further agrees to have the Cbntrer^r'a representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR ORANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMEIIfT OF AGRICULTURE - COfTTRACTORS

Thb certification is r^uired by the r^ulations Implementing Sections 51.51.-Si 60 of the Drug^ree
WoHiplaca Act of 16'^ (Pub. L. 100-890, Tctie V. Subtitle D;'41 U.S..C. .701 et seq.). The Jariiiary 31."
1969 regutalions were ernended end published as Part II of the May 25,1990 F^eral Register (ppges
21661-21691). end require cartifi^tton by gmntees (and by inference, sub'-grantees and eut^
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free worhpl^. Section 3017.6.36(c) of the
riagulatlpn provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub-contractors) that Is a St^e
rhey eled to make one certiflcatjon to the Department In each federal fiscal year-ln lieu of certificates for
each gmnt during the federal fi.s^l y^r covered by the ceilificatlon. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon v^ich reliar\ce is placed wheii the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification sholl be grounds for suspensior) of payriients. suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Cofilractbrs using this form should
send K to:

Commissioner

NH bepertment of Health end Hurhen Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certrfies that It will or will coritlnue to provide a drugrfree workplace by:.
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying' employees thjat the unla^l rnanufacture,' distribution,

dispensing, possession or'use of a Mntro|ie>d substance is prohibited In thegrantee's ,
workplace end specifying the actions that will be taken against emptoyees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing en ongoirvg drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a druo4ree workplace; ̂
1.2.3. Ariy available drug counseling, rehebililalion, end ernployM essi$t8r>ce programs; and
1.2.4. The peneRies that riiay be Irhposed upon employees for drug'abuse Violiations

occurring In the v^rkplace;
1.3. Making it a re.quir'ement that e.8ch employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Noltfyihg the employee in the ststemehl required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

enripioyment under the grant, th.e employee will
1.4.1.' Abide by the terms of the staterherit; arid
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her corivictiori for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurrir)o in the workplace t)o later than five caiendoTdays after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, wRhin ten calendar days sRer receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2'from en employee or bthermse re^lvlno actual notice'of such conviction.
Employers of convicted emptoyees rhust provide rtotice, including position title. I6 every grant
officer ori whose grbn't'ectivRy the convicted employee was working, unless the FedemI agency

0 - Ccttflutlbn Oiug Fros V«nd'or trhlalk
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has designate a cenUal point for lha receipt of such notices. Notice shaD include the
identificotion number(6) of each affected grant; . • . -

1.6. JaKlhg one of the foilowihg actions. Within 30_ca!endar days of receiving notice undereubparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any empioyw who Is so convicted
161 Taking appropriate pefs'onijel action against such an employee, up to end including.termination, cohsisleni with the reguiremehts of the Rahabilitaliofi Act of 1973. as

amended; or . . ^ • * '
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pofticlpa'le satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or

rehabilitation pr^ram .approved for such purposes by a Federai. Stpte. or local health,
law enforcisment, or other appropriate e.gericy;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to meintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3. 1.4.1.5, end 1.6.

2. Ttio grantee may, insert In the spece proyld^ below the elte(8) for the performanM of work done in
conn'eciiori with'the Specific grant.

Place of Performance (strMi address, city.- county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there em workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Na

C^ate" ' Name; U /

0

ExhlbltD-CertiflcaOonresBrcn^ Drug Free Vendor
Workplace Requlremente / IvJr i\
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Tha Vendor Identified In Serction 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees to comply with the provlslone of
Sedlon 319 of Public Law 101-121. Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 Lf.S.C. 1352, end further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
8n.d 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follov^rig Certrfication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENt OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered);
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title iv^
'Child.Support' Enforcement Program urider ThJo Iv-O
'Social Servides Gi^t Program under Title XX
'Mediceid Prog.mm under Title )(IX
'Community Seryfces Block Grant under Trtfe VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undemigned certifies, to the best bf his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No. Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or ori behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attemptirtg to influence eri officer or employee of any .agency, a Member
of Congms, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Mprhber of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amiendrrient, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cpdpe.rative egreerrient (end by specific mention
sub-gr^tee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than F^eral appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to arty person for
influencing or attempting to ihriuehce an officer or employee of any agency, a Merhber of Congress,
en officer of employee bf Congress, or an erhployee of a Member of Congress In conhecllbn with this
Federal contr^. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arid by specific mention sub^rantee or 8ut>^
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and subrri.it Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Hs Instructions, attached end identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shajl require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for subrewards at ail tiers (iricluding aubconlracts. eub^rents, and contracts under grants.
iMns; and cooperalfve agreements) and that ell Bub^reciplents shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a fjnaterial represer^tation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this ceitification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
trartMCllon frnpos^ by Sedlon 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shell Im subject to a civil penalty of not less than $t0,000 and not more thari $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

poiteDate / Nanie:

Exhibit E - CenncaSon Regarding lobbying Vandc IntUais
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Now Hampshiro Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEeARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrMs to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Piesident, ̂ ecutrve Order 12M9 ertd 45 CFR Part 76 regarding DebarmenI, \
Sus^nslon. and Other Res^^nsibflily Matters, end further agrees to have the Controctor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of theGerieral Provisions execute the foDowing
Certific^on:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By elgrilng ond eubmltting (his proposal (controcl). the prospective primary participanl Is providing the

certifiedton sal out below.

2. The Inability of e person to provide the certlftootton required below will not hecessprtly result In.denlal
d partidpaliori In this' cbver^ transaction.' If necessary', the proep^i^ p^iclpant shall submit an
e^lanattonofwhyitcanndt'providethecertificetlon. Thecertrficatipn 'c^ explanattonwillbe -
considered In connection with the NH Depa^ent of Health end Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter ihio this irahsactiqn. However, failure of the prospective prtrhary
piarticlpant to furnish a cerlificatiori or an explanation shall disqualify such per^n from partelpatidn In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is e material representatton of fact upon which reliance was placed,
when OHHS deteimined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined thtf the prospectiNw
primary participanl knowingly rendered an erroneous certifcation. In addition to bihef rerhedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transactton for cause or default.

4. The prospecthe primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the 0_HHS egency.to
whom this proposal (conbact) is submitted if et eny time the prospective primary participant ieams
that its certification was erroneous when eubrnltted or has becorhe erroneous by reason of changed
circurhstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible;* 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'parlicipant.' 'per^,* 'pfirhaty covered trehsactton,* 'prirVbipal.' 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excl.uded.' as used In this clause, haye the meanings set but to the Defmittons and
Coverage sections of the rules impternenttog Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitiohs.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, ehould the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into. H shall hot kho^ngly enter into eny lower tier covered
trensectior> with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partic^etion to this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participanl further agrees by submitting this pro'po.sel that it will Include the ■
clause titled 'Certificalion Regarding DebarmenI. Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary i^clusiqn •
Lower Tier Covered Trahsecttons.* provided by OHHS. without modifrcstion. In all ibwer'tier bovered
transactions er^d in ell solicitations for tower tiiar covered transactions.

6. A participent in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participarit In a
lower tie.r covered transactiqn that it is riot deberred, suspended, ineligible, or invoturitehly excluded
from the coyered trahsa'ction, unless it knovi^ that the ceitificatlon Is erroneous. A pa'rilclpant may
decide (he method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participanl may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocuremerit List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system.of records
in order to tahder in good faith the certifrcation required by this clause. The knowledge end

F - CertJOceVon R«gardlno Oetermeni. Suspension Vendor MUals..A^
And Other RwpcnsUiBlfy Mottcrs ' vT^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

informetion of a participant is not rcK^uired to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the drdirtary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transa^lons authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, rf a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a parsori who is
Busper^ded, debarred, inaliglbfa, or yoiuntaiDy excluded from partlcip^ion In this transaction, in
addition to other rem^las availabta to the Federal govemment, OHHS may terminate this transaction
for causa or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certrfiee to the bast of Its knowledge ar^ beli^, that it end its

principals:
11.1. are not prasanay debarred, suspended, proposed for dabarment; daeiared IneQgibla, or

^untarlly axciudad from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have rtot within a thfisa-yMr period preceding this proposal (cdritri^) ̂ ri convicted of or had

a cMI judgnieht renda.red against them for commission of fraud or a ciirnlnal offei)sa in
connection witti obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubCc (Federal. SUte or local)
trahs^ion or a contred uttder a public transaction; viclatibn of FMeral or SWe antitrust
statutes or conunissiw of erribeaJernent, (heft, forgery, bribery, falsifttttion or destrudion of
roM^s. making falsa stdemenl8..br receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indid'ad for othe'rv^se crfrhihaity or ci^lly charged by a governmental .entity.
(Federal. State .or li^l) with commissiot^ of any of the offaniae ahumerat^ in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cartificatjon; end

11.4. have hot wHhln a three-year period preceding this appHcalion/proposel hed one or more public
transedions (Federal; State or local) tafmlnstad for cause or default.

12. yvhera the prpapadrve primary participant is unable to certify to eny of the statements in this
certificatioh. such prospective participant ehiall attach an ej^lanelion to this propo^ (contrad).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing.end eubmltting this' lower tier proposal (contred), the prospedive lower tier participant, as

dafiried In 45 CFR Part 76. cartiftes to the b^st of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:'
13.1. are not presently debarried, auspendad. proposed for deba.rment-. declarad Ineliglbta. or

voluntarily axdudad.from participation in this t/ansac^on by any federardepartment or agency.
13.2, wtiere the prospec^ lower tier participant Is unable to. certify to any of the above, auch

prbspediva participant shall attach en explanation to (his pr6po$ar(contrad).

14. The prospedive lower tier participant further agrees by eubmlhing this proposal (contrad) that it will
include this clause arititled 'CertrTication Regarding Dabarment. Suspensiorj. I'naligibility. arid
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Trar^sadicris.* without mpdificalibn in all lower tier covered
tr'ansadiohs and In all solicitatiohs for lower tier covered transedions.

{/k/i
Date 1

Vendor Name:

Name: i" ®

^0

'  ExHM F - CertlflcsUon RegvUine 0«b«nnent. Suspenilor) Vendor InUth
And Other Re»|)onsIbl!ay Matter*
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Now Hempshtro Doparlmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

"Oie Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provieion# agrees by signature of the Con^ctoi'a
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any sutjgfBfitees or subcontractors to comply, wHh any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which mey include:

- the Omnibys Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 19M (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federel funding under this siatute from discrimlhatlng, either in employm.eht practices or In
the delivery of Mn^es or benefits, on the basis of race, color, rellglian. national ongin, end sex. The Act
requires certain reclpiehts to pr^uce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
r the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C;. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Ad.. R^ipienls of federal tur^ding ur^der this
statute are prohibKed frdrn discrirninating-. either in ieniplo^ent'prBdices or in the delivery of services or
tenefits. on the. basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sax. The.Act includes Equal
Employrhent OpjMrtunily Pjan reiquiremehts;

. the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discrwiriating on the basis of face, color, or natbnal ongin in any. (jrogram or activity);
. the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of F^eral financial
essisiarice from" dbcriminating on' the basis of disability. In regard to employrhent and the delivery of
services or benefits. In eny program or activily;

-the Americariswithpisabiiitles Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sedions 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In erhployment. Slate and local
government services, public accorhmodations, comnierciel facilities; arid transportaton;

- tho'EduMtlon Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.Gj Sedions 1681,1683.1685-86), which prohibits
discHrnihatlpn on the basis of sex in fed.erejty assisted education prograrris;

- the Age Dischminat'lpn Act of 1975 (42 U.ic. Sections 6106-07), prohibits discrimlnatlbn ori the
basis of ago In programs or activities receiving Federal financial qsslsta.nce. It does not include
employrneht discrtminallo'n;

- 28 C.F.R. pt..3i (U.S. Depaftmont of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42'
(U.S. Department ofJustice Refgulations Nondiscnmihation; Equal Em'ployment Opportunity;- Policies.
and Prbce'dures); ̂eciiiive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and conrimunity
b^ahizations): Ek^utive Order No. 13559, which pro'vlde fundamental principles and pblicy-riiakihg
criteria for partnerships vyjth faith-based end neighbo.rhood organizations;

- 26 C.F.R. pt. 30 (U.S. Department of Justice Regutatloris -r Equal Treatrnent for Faim-Based
Organizations); and'Whistleblbwer protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end ̂ e National Defense Authorizatlort
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 20i3'(Rub. L. '112-239. enected.January ;2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhencement of Go'ntract Employee vyhisUeblower Protections, which protects pmployees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowlrig actiWies In connection with federal grants end contracts.

The certificato set out below is a rnaterial representation of fact upon \^lch reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of peyrnents, suspension or teiininatiort of granls. or govemrheht ̂ de suspension or
debarmerit.

ExNbli G
Vendor InlllBls

orCiiiilB*'! itni iiiilnrnirTi fill"-T)"*"—' £*i< TfMtfiw*atrrfji OMiil O^irttidani
andVVHcMleMrprMKedn*
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Naw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

in the event e Federal or State court or Federal or State edminislratlve agency makes e finding of
discdminetion after a due proMss hearing on the grounds of race, color, religidn, national origih, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to (he Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health end Human SeMces. and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Offica of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Cdhtractoi'e '
representative as identified ini Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions, to execute the fpUowing
certification:

1. By signing and subrhitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name:

Date Name: Vi

&MbliG
VandorlrVllBb
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL tOBACCd SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any ii^oor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services ere funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In prrvtfe residences. facilHiiBS funded solely by
fVl^icere or Medlcaid funds, end portion's of facilities used for Inpetlent drug or elcohpl treatment. Failure
to comply vdth the provliitont of (he |.aw iney result ln.(he tmposllion of a civil monetary penalty of up to
Siobo per day and/or the irnpositio'n of en administrative compliance orderon the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees. t>y signature of the Contractor's
representative as Id'entlfied In Section i.1'1 and'1.12 of the General Pro^iohs, to ekMiite the following'
certificatibn:

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor egrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all epplicebte provisions of Public Law 103-227. Pert C. known as the Pro^hildren Act of 1994.

Vendor Name;

Date ' Nsrrie: c TcPo

Ejtf^H-CertflceUon Regarding Vendor InillaU .
Eri^ronrnemal Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreernent agrees to
Mrnpty wKh the Heiallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Ideritifiable Haajlh Infprfhatioh. 45
CFR Parts 160 arid 164 applicable to busiriess asspciales. As defmed hei^iii. 'Business
Associate* shall mean thie Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that revive,
use or have access to protect^ health informetioh under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean (he State, of New Hanrtpshire. Department of Heatth and Hurhan Services.

<1 Deflnltloha.

a. ■Breach'' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Tttie 45.
Code of F^eral Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160^103 of Tide 45. Code
of F^eral Regulations.

.c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such te.rm in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal .l^e'gulations.

d. 'Deslonated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section164.S0V

e. "Data-Aaaregatrbri" shall have the same meariing as the temri "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section-164.501.

f. ^Health-Care Operations" shall have the same rt^eaning as the term -health care operations"
In 45 CFR Seqtibn 164.501.

g. 'HITECH AcT means the Health.Information Techriology for Econorintc and Clinical Health
Act. TItieXIII. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HiPAA' means the Health Ins.urance.Pbrtabjlity and Accpuntabilily Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Pnvacy arid Security of .Individually Identifiable Health
inforrriatich. 45 CFR Parts 1'6b, 162 and 164 and amendrrierits thereto'.

I. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the terin "indjviduar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
arid shall include a person who qualifies as a personarrepresentatiye in accordSrii^ with .45
CFRSectibn164.5di{g).

I  ̂

j. 'Privacy Rule" shad mean the Staridards for. Privacy of iridivldualiy Identifiable Health
Informatibn at 45 CFR Parts '160 and 1M. promulgated uhder HIPAA by the United States
bepa.rtrrient of Health arid Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' .shall haye the same meaning as the-term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103..limitedto the. information cfe'ated or recelve'^y
Business Associate from of on tiehalf of Covered Entity:

3/2014 EjMbltl Vendor Inmxii
HeeriMnsunnoe PorUtllltjr Ad
Builhesa AsMdeio Aonement
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N6W Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

I. 'RMuired bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by (aw* In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Hunian Services or
hi^'er designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Inforrriatibn at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. tUnseciifed Protected Health information' means protected health Infofmatlon that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or mdecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All teims not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from tinHe to time, and the
HITECH

Act. ■

(2) Business Aseociate Use and Olaclbsure of Protected Health Ififcrmatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Inforrriistion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not lirnited to all
its directors, officers, erriployees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manrier that would constitute a viqiatlon of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PH|;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Assocjate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth iri paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care pperatlons of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreernerit to disclose P.HI to a
third parly. Business Associate must obtain, prior to rhaking any such disclosure, (i)
reasor\dble assurarices from t.he third party tiriat such PHI will be held conifidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third pai^; and (ii) an agreemerii from such .third party to notify Business
Associate, in eccordarice wHh the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose ̂ ny PHI In resppnse to a
request for disclosure on the basis that.ii is required by law, without firet notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busing

3/2014 , ExNWtl Vandflf Irtftlab ^
Health li^uranoe PoHablllty Act
Btiilneit Aa'iodate Ag'reemenl
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

Associate shall refrain from disclosirig the PHi until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. if the Covered Entity ribttfies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
tie bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or.discfosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall r)ot disclose PHI In viotatiori of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Asabclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Cbvered Entity's Privacy Officer irhmediatety
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use pr disclosure of protected
health Ihforinatibn not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsw.ured
protected health infohmatlon arid/or any security. Inciderit that may have an irhpact on the
prp.terte.d ̂ atth infonnation of the Covered Entity.

b. - the Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment When it (Mcomps
aware of any of the at>bve situations. The risk assessment shall include, but hot be
limited to: ^

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re^identihcation;

0 The unairihoHzed person used the protected healdi Information or to wfhom the
disclosure was' rriade;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment >^lhin 40 hours of the
Breach and Imrriediatety report'the firidirigs of the risk assessmerit In writing to the
Covered Entity;

c. The Business Assocjate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Internal policies arid procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associaie bh behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of deterrnihing Covered Entity's cofripliarice with HIPAA arid the Priva'cy and
Security Rule. '

6. Business Associate shall require alj of its business associates that receive, use or haye
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same ,
restrictions arwJ. conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI coritalned Herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as pfbvjded under Sectloh 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be corisidered a direct third party berieficiary of the Contractbr's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business essociates, Will be receiving P^fl

IQOU . . . Vfendnr InKlals vA
HealihIrauraride PortfiBtlltyAd > V r/ £%
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement end indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisioris (P-37) of this Agreement fbr the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Withiri five (5) business days of recielpt of ia written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during ncrfnal business hours at its offices ell
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to Uie use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for puippses of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Eritlty,
Business Associate shall proyide access to PHI in a peslgnatiad Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en individual In order to meet the
requirerhents under 45 CPR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writteh request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI br a record about an Individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, die Business A^odate shall make such PHI available to Covered EnUty for
amendment and incorporate any such arnendment to eriable Coyered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CPR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Coyered Entity to respond to a request by en
Individual for an accduntihg of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Eritlty for a
request for an a_cbounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such ihformatlpn as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual r^uests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
diredfy htim the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall ̂ hin ̂ o (2)
business days forward such request to Coyered Entity. Coydred Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests: However, if forwarding the
[ndiyldual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPM and the Privacy and Security Rule, (he Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of terrnination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate isHail return or destroy, as specified by Covered Enti^. all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall nol retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of me PHI has t^n othejwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to e^end the proteptjons of the
Agreerhent, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those .
purposes that make the return or destrvctiori Ihfeasible, for so long as Busiriess ̂

3/8014 EiNWil VeftdOfWa«ft,
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Associate maintains such PHi. if Covered Entity. In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PMI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllaatlona of Covered Ehtltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Busmess Associate of any changes or limitationfs) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promp^ notify Business As^ciate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be. used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
1M.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 1M.522.
to the extent that such restriction rhay affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity rhay Immediately terminate the Agree.rhent upon Cover^
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Irrimediately
terminate Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeffarhe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determiries that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) fl^lflcellaneouft

a. Definitions and ReQui'atorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise de^fined herein,
shall Have the same rneahjng as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to iirrie. A reference In the Agreement, ais arnended to Include this Exhibit t. to
a Sedlon In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or aS
arnended.

b. Amendment: Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to emend the Agfeefnent, frorn time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to corhply with (he changes in the r^ulrements of HIPAA, the Priyacy and
Security Rule, ar^d applicable federal end state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate ackno^edges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provid^ by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intefpretatlon. The parties agree that any ambiguity, in the Agreement shall be resolved
to' permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

J/»U ExMWll Vef^or tnttUla ^
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e. Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
peison(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given'effect wfthoul the invalid term or condltioh; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severabla.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in serton (3) t, the
defense and Indem'nificatioh provisions of eectlori (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health end Human Services ' ^

0 nave ouiy execuiea inis cxniuii i.

rState ^ Narhe
Signature of AuthotoM Represehtalive SigfTBture of Autmnzed Representative

Cm
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized f^epresentatiye

Title of Authorized RepresentSw

5M4i-
D

/ 0 <e./^ / 0

ate

Title of Authorized Representative

J h-Hi-
Date

3/2014 EiMbltl

HsbIU) buuronde PortBWnty Ad
BusIdms Aiiodaie Aor«ement

P»0« e o1 e

Vendor InttUJs

Date
V K.'i
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CERTIFICATION REQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

^  ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

the Federal Funding Accountability and Traneparency ̂  (FFATA) requires prime swardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and oward^ on or after Octc^r 1.2010. to report on
data related to' executl^ compensation end associate first-tier sub-granta of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial efward 'a below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the 8W8^ is subject to the FFATA reporting requifemenUi. as of the date of the ewa^. -
In accordance with 2'CFR Pert 170 (Reportirtg Subaward and Executive Com'pensation Information), the
Departrherit of t^tth arid Human Services (OHMS) must report the fpliovring information for any
eubeward or coritrect 'eward subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Narne of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. h^CS'coda for'contracts f CFDA progiw number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title dMcriptlve of the purpose of the funding action
7. Locatkm of the entity.
B. Nr^ple place, of performance.
6. Unique Ideriiifler of the bntlty (DUNS d)
10. Total cbmpehsation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More'th'ert 80% of annual grots revenues ore front the Federal government, and those
revenues ere greater than $2SM ehnualty and

10.2. Cpmpens^lon Information is nol atr^y available .through retorting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or isward arn'endment Is made.
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provistbns agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accdunt^biiity and Transparency Act. Public Lew 109^282 and Public Ijbw i'l6-2S2.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive. Compensation Information), end further agrees
to .have the Contreptofs repr^entetive. as identified in Sections 1.11 arid 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certlficatidri:
The.tielovy named Vqndor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health artd Human Services end to comply with a!) applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability end Transparency Act.

Vertdor Name:

i yy I
£?r<e>Date Name: vt

Exhibtl J-C<rtlflcstfonR«sBr4]ngtneF04eftifundln0 Vendor IntUsli
Accouitebility And Tiwparency Act (FFATA) ConipOanc© u^/Tlr /i ^
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FORMA

As the Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Prpvisione, I cerlcfy that the responses to the
below listed que^iohs ere true and eccurate.

1. The DUNS number (or your entity

2. In your business or oroanization's preceding compieted ftscal year, did your business or ongantzatlon
receive ('1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In LI.S. federal conVacta, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreerhenta; end (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross re^nues frorh U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranto. end/pr
coo^rati^ agreements?

NO YES

tf the answer to 02 above is. NO. stop here

If the answer to 02.ebova Is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the corhpensotion of the exec^ves In your
business or bi^ahizatibn through pCirlcdic reports filed under section 13('e) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(e). 76o(d)) or section 6104 df the Intemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If (he answer to 03 above is NO. please answer (he following:

4. The names end compenMtlon of the five most flighty .cornpensated officers In ypu'f .business or
orgisnlzatlon era as fotlowe:

Name:. ■ Amount:

Name; . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount: • • ••

Name: Amount: .

DCilbn i ~ C«ftinc«t)on RtQvdlng the FedersI Funding Vendor InRlett
AccouhteWUty And Trempercncy Ad (FFAT^ Compdance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Deftnitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning lr> this document;

1. 'Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized dtsclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, v^ether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Heetth
Information,' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term' 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800^1, Computer Security Incident
' Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all conndentlat Inforrnation
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance tenefits and personal information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and

Personalty Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited (o
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user,' etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physlcal or electronic

V5. Ua$iupdate 10/OS/18 ExhlbliK ContrsctorInlibia
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. *Open Wireless Networic' means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wtlj be corisiclered an open
netwdrk and not' adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confldentlal DHHS data.

8. 'Personal information' (or 'PI') means information wt^lch.can t>e used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, spclai security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 3S9-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth; mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall ti^ean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and. Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHr) has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to. unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Infonmatlon.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees arid agents, must not
use. disclose, mainteln or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

vs. Lost update lVD9/ie Exhibit K Conl/eciorlnltleis.
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request for disclosure on (he basis that it is required by law, in response to 8
subpoena, etc., without first notifying OHMS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
cooMnt or object to the disctosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that OHHS has agreed to t>e bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contrector must be t>ound by. such
eddilionai restrictions and must not disclose PHI In. violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor'agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to ah End
User must only be used pursuant to (he terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TKANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Oa^ between applications, the Contractor atteste the applications have
t>een evaluated by ah expert knowledgeable in cyber security end that said
applicati.on's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use oompuler disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transrhit Confideritial Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by ernail addresses of
persons au^.ori'zed to receive such Infonmation.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Corlfidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) rhust be used and the .web site rhust be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Sen/ices, also knpvyn as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mal) within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named .Individual.

7. Laptpps and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to bansmlt
Confidentiai Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

6. Open Wifeless Networks. End User may not transrhit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Ltn upd»ie KVOtflS Ejtfibit K
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wifeless network. End User must employ a vlftuat private network (VPN) when
fenvjtely transmitting via an open wireless he^ork.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Cbrifidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End tisefs mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
trartsmltted or accesMd.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure RIe transfer Protocol. If
End. User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidentl.al Data^ End Use/ will
stnjctufe the Folder end access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmlttirig Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data end any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the date and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collacted In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
end/or Department confidential informatioh for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness end education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Conlrector agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure locatiori and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In e Cloud must be Jn a
FedRAft^P/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy end security. All servers and devices must have
currentty-supported end hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to end ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Oisposition

1. If the Contractor wtll maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cerlificatlon for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unreccvereble via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanilization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example.

' degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-68. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizatlon. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify |n writing at
time of the data destruction, and wtll provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certincation will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate, data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contrect, Contractor agrees to destroy ell hard copies of Confidentldl Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidenllal Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard (he DHHS Data received under this Contrect, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor vwll maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
conridential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication end access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitonng capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/dr
Department confidential InfomiaUcn for contractor provided systems.

.  5. The Contractor wlll provide regular security awareness and education for Its End

Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub^ntrecting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syatemfs). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor v^ll execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Departmeril and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabllilies that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the OeparlmenI and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contrector will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of eny security breech Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breech end minimize any damage or loss resultirig from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and r^ulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In ell other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level 'end scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security' Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security thai is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dbit/v6ndor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating lo vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor vyiil notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of. any security breach Immediately, et the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Slate of New Hampshire networlt.

15. Contractor must, restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those euthorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified in this Contract. .

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV. A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at ail times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. liml^disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area (hat is
physically end technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card Keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personalty identifiable information, and in ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access .the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves (he right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy end security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulallons until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle end report Incidents and Breaches involvirig PHI In
accordance with (he agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Noliftcation
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and deterrriine risk-t>ased responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine wtiether Breach notification is required, arid, If s'o, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrtv0cyOfr1cer@dhhs.nh.9ov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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